


 

 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

540A 6th Street 

P.O. Box 239 

Arbuckle CA  95912 

(530) 476-2892 * (530) 476-2289 Fax 

 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
PPIERCE TECHNOLOGY BUILDING 

940A WILDWOOD RD, ARBUCKLE CA  95912 

 

THURSDAY        JUNE 22, 2017       6:00 p.m. 

 

AGENDA 

Governing Board 

Abel Gomez, President 

John Friel, Vice President Nadine High, Board Clerk 

George Green, Member Amy Charter, Member 

 

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

A.  Pledge of Allegiance 

 

   

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA ACTION 

   

3. HEARING OF THE PUBLIC 
(Speakers will be given three (3) minutes to speak with a twenty (20) minute limit per topic) 

A.  The 2017/18 Budget, LCFF (Local Control Funding Formula) 

B.  The 2017/18 LCAP (Local Control and Accountability Plan) 

C.  The 2017/18 Education Protection Account (EPA) 

D.  The 2017/18 Budget Attachment:  Balances in Excess of Minimum Reserve 

Requirements 

E.  2017/18 Joint Sunshine Proposal between the Pierce Joint Unified School 

District and the Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association 

 

   

4. PRINCIPAL’S  BENCHMARK REPORTS 

A.  Arbuckle Elementary School/Grand Island Elementary School 

B.  Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School 

C.  Pierce High School/Arbuckle Alternative High School 

INFORMATION 

   

5. REPORTS: 

A.  Facilities / Transportation Report 

B.  2017/2018 Budget Report 

C.  WASC Action Plan 

D.  DAC (District Advisory Committee) Report 

E.  4th Quarter Discipline Report 

F.  2016/17 Staff Development Report  

G.  Pierce High School Grade Status Report 

H.  Grand Island Water Testing Results 

I.   Annual School Nurse Report 

J.   Colusa County Shooting Club Report 

K.  ASES District Collaborative Meeting Report 

INFORMATION/ 

DISCUSSION 

Documents provided to a majority of the Governing Board regarding an open session item on this agenda will be made available 

for public inspection in the District Office located at 540A 6th Street, Arbuckle CA  95912, during normal business hours. 

2 of 638



Agenda June 22, 2017- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

   

6. PJUEA (Pierce Joint Unified Educators Association) Report INFORMATION 

   

7. CSEA (California School Employees Association) Report INFORMATION 

   

8. Consider and approve The Creation of a Shooting Club affiliated with the 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

ACTION 

   

9. Consider and approve 2017/18 TCIP (Tri-County Induction Program) 

Participants and Providers 

ACTION 

   

10. Consider and approve Resolution #16/17 – 33:  Resolution Regarding the 

2017/18 Education Protection Account 

ACTION 

   

11. Consider and approve Resolution #16/17 – 34:   Resolution Authorizing for 

the District and/or Colusa County Office of Education to Make Year End 

Budgetary Adjustments 

ACTION 

   

12. Consider and approve Resolution #16/17 – 35:  Budget Revision ACTION 

   

13. Consider and approve Resolution #16/17 – 36:  Budget Attachment – Balances 

in Excess of Minimum Reserve Requirements 

ACTION 

   

14. Consider and approve  2017/18 Single Plan for Student Achievement for: 

A.  Arbuckle Elementary School                    D.  Pierce High School/ 

B.  Grand Island Elementary School                   Arbuckle Alternative  

C.  Lloyd G. Johnson Junior High School           High School 

ACTION 

   

15. Consider and approve Declaration of Need for Fully Qualified Educators ACTION 

   

16. Consider and approve Annual Statement of Need:  30-Day Substitute and 

Designated Subjects Vocational Education 30-Day Substitute Teaching 

Permits 

ACTION 

   

17. Consider and approve 20-17/18 Title III ESSA Transition Plan ACTION 

   

18. Consider and approve 2017/18 Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical 

Education Grant 

ACTION 

   

19. Consider and approve 2017/18 Agriculture Career Technical Education 

Inventive Grant 

ACTION 

   

20. Consider and approve 2017/18 Joint Sunshine Proposal between the Pierce 

Joint Unified School District and the Pierce Joint Unified Educators 

Association 

ACTION 

   

21. Consider and approve Memorandum of Understanding between the Pierce 

Joint Unified School District and the Pierce Joint Unified Educators 

Association for the 2017/18 School Year – Peer Assistance and Review 

ACTION 

3 of 638



Agenda June 22, 2017- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

   

22. Consider and approve Memorandum of Understanding between the Pierce 

Joint Unified School District and the Pierce Joint Unified Educators 

Association for the 2017/18 School Year – PJUEA Proposals to Make Full-

day Kindergarten and TK the Best They Can Be for Our Students in 

2017/18 

ACTION 

   

23. Consider and approve Consent Agenda: 

A.  Minutes of May 18, 2017 Regular Board Meeting 

B.  Minutes of May 24, 2017 Special Board Meeting 

C.  Warrant List for May 2017 

D.  Interdistrict Transfers: 

      1.  Transferring IN for 2016/17 School Year: 

            a.  Three (3) Students from Williams CA – Continuing 

            b.  One (1) Student from Princeton CA - New 

      2.  Transferring OUT for the 2016/17 School Year: 

            a.  Three (3) Students to Woodland CA – New 

            b.  Three (3) Students to Colusa CA ((1) continuing) 

            c.  Two (2) Student to Colusa Co. Office of Education, Colusa CA (new) 

            d.  Two (2) Students to Fairfield CA  (new) 

E.  Donations: 

      1.  Rojelio Dance Academy – AES: 

a. H&A Charter Farms 

b. Frank and Janet Alonso 

c. Jason and Merry Hofhenke 

d. Gerardo Martinez and Maria Claustro 

e. County Line Warehouse, Inc. 

f. Allen and Bonnie Ehrke 

g.  James and Renee Manhart 

h. Ruben and Ailed Saavedra 

i. Andy and Carol Geyer 

j. Araceli and Jose Luis Murillo 

k. Juan and Silvia Perez 

l.. Ciro and Olivia Ordaz 

m. Sylvia Boles 

n. Amanda Riviera 

o. Michele White 

p. Adolfo Sahagun 

q. Jose Perez 

r. Hilda Vega 

s. Bianca Alcaraz 

t. Angelica Coss Armendariz 

u. Juana Preciado 

v. Kathy Boughton 

w. Yolanda Duarte 

x. Maria Cano 

y. Josefina Cano 

z. Roberto Herrera 

aa. Jose Cruz 

ACTION 

4 of 638



Agenda June 22, 2017- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

bb. Dalila and Chris Colsa 

cc. Meikle Farms – Michael and Vikki Arens 

dd. Petra de La Flor 

ee. Fatima Hernandez 

ff. Joaquin Olhiser 

gg. Veronica Martinez 

hh. Genoveva Serrano 

ii. Joseph and Christina Mencia 

jj. Judith LaGrande 

kk. Salvador Carrillo 

ll. Craig and Anne Felix 

mm. Strain Farming Company LP 

nn. Mr. and Mrs. Hugo Salud 

oo. T&P Farms 

pp. Santa Rosa Ramon 

qq. Guadalupe Ayala 

rr. Ana Vargas-Medina 

ss. Michael and Tina Phelan 

tt. California Family Foods 

uu. Colusa Rotary Club 

vv. Superior Tire Service 

xx. Maggie and Jose Ruiz 

yy. Grimmer Farms 

zz. Colusa Dairy 

F.  Contracts: 

      1.  Agreement between Pierce Joint Unified School District and California 

School Boards Association for GAMUT Online Services – Policy 

Information System 

      2.  Agreement between Pierce Joint Unified School District and California 

School Boards Association for Board Policy Manual Maintenance Service 

      3.  Memorandum of Understanding between Sutter County Superintendent of 

Schools and the Pierce Joint Unified School District for Tri-County ROP 

for the 2017/18 School Year 

G.  Overnight Field Trip Requests: 

1.  Arbuckle FFA Officer Retreat 

   

24. BOARD POLICIES 

A.  FIRST READING 

  1. BP/AR 1312.3:  Uniform Complaint Procedures 

  2. BP 1340:  Access to District Records 

  3. BP 2121:  Superintendent’s Contract 

  4. BP/AR 3551:  Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 

  5. AR 3580:  District Records 

  6. BP/AR 4127/4227/2327:  Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 

  7. BP 4312.1:  Contracts 

  8. AR 5145.3:  Nondiscrimination/Harassment 

  9. BP 6142.93:  Science Instruction 

10. BP 6145:  Athletic Competition 

11. BP/AR 6178.1:  Work-Based Learning 

INFORMATION/ 

POSSIBLE 

ACTION 

5 of 638



Agenda June 22, 2017- Regular Board Meeting 
Pierce Joint Unified School District 

 

12. BP 7214:  General Obligation Bonds 

13. BB 9012:  Board Member Electronic Communications 
 

   

25. Items to be agendized for the next regular meeting:  

   

26. Superintendent’s Report  

   

27. Board President Report  

   

28. CLOSED SESSION: ACTION 

  

A.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to 

Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to 
discuss public employee discipline/dismissal/release 

 

B.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to hold discussion 
concerning employment agreement for unrepresented employee.  Unrepresented 

Employee:  Superintendent; Agency Negotiator:  Board President 

 
C.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (2) OR (3) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF 

GOVERNMENT CODE 54956.9:  One Case:  Claim of Manuel Naverette 

 

   

29. OPEN SESSION:  Report ACTION taken in CLOSED SESSION: ACTION 

  

A.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to 
Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to 

discuss public employee discipline/dismissal/release 

 
B.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR:  Pursuant to Government Code 

Section 54957.6, the Board will meet in CLOSED SESSION to hold discussion 

concerning employment agreement for unrepresented employee.  Unrepresented 

Employee:  Superintendent; Agency Negotiator:  Board President 
 

C.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

PURSUANT TO PARAGRAPH (2) OR (3) OF SUBDIVISION (D) OF 
GOVERNMENT CODE 54956.9:  One Case:  Claim of Manuel Naverette 

 

   

30. Adjourn  

 

In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to access the Board meeting room or to otherwise participate at 

this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact our office at  

(530) 476-2892 x13006.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure 

accessibility to the Board meeting.  (Government Code § 54954.2) 

6 of 638



7 of 638



8 of 638



9 of 638



10 of 638



11 of 638



12 of 638



13 of 638



14 of 638



15 of 638



16 of 638



17 of 638



18 of 638



19 of 638



20 of 638



21 of 638



22 of 638



23 of 638



24 of 638



25 of 638



26 of 638



27 of 638



28 of 638



29 of 638



30 of 638



31 of 638



32 of 638



33 of 638



34 of 638



35 of 638



36 of 638



37 of 638



38 of 638



39 of 638



40 of 638



41 of 638



42 of 638



43 of 638



44 of 638



45 of 638



46 of 638



47 of 638



48 of 638



49 of 638



50 of 638



51 of 638



52 of 638



53 of 638



54 of 638



55 of 638



56 of 638



57 of 638



58 of 638



59 of 638



60 of 638



61 of 638



62 of 638



63 of 638



64 of 638



65 of 638



66 of 638



67 of 638



68 of 638



69 of 638



70 of 638



71 of 638



72 of 638



73 of 638



74 of 638



75 of 638



76 of 638



77 of 638



78 of 638



79 of 638



80 of 638



81 of 638



82 of 638



83 of 638



84 of 638



85 of 638



86 of 638



87 of 638



88 of 638



89 of 638



90 of 638



91 of 638



92 of 638



93 of 638



94 of 638



95 of 638



96 of 638



97 of 638



98 of 638



99 of 638



100 of 638



101 of 638



102 of 638



103 of 638



104 of 638



105 of 638



106 of 638



107 of 638



108 of 638



109 of 638



110 of 638



Page 1 of 99

LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

Local Control 
Accountability Plan 
and Annual Update 
(LCAP) Template

Addendum: General instructions & regulatory requirements. 

Appendix A: Priorities 5 and 6 Rate Calculations

Appendix B: Guiding Questions: Use as prompts (not limits)

LCFF Evaluation Rubrics: Essential data to support completion of this 
LCAP. Please analyze the LEA’s full data set; specific links to the 
rubrics are also provided within the template.
 

LEA Name Pierce Joint Unified School District

----------Contact Name and
Title

Carol Geyer
Superintendent

Email and 
Phone

cgeyer@pierce.k12.ca.us
(530) 476-2892

2017-20 Plan Summary
THE STORY
Briefly describe the students and community and how the LEA serves them.

Pierce Joint Unified School District had an enrollment of 1,480 students in the 2016/17 school year. The district serves the 
rural communities of Arbuckle, College City, Dunnigan, Grimes, and the surrounding areas that encompass approximately 
435 square miles in the southern one-third of Colusa County and extending six miles into Yolo County. Pierce district is 
located about 50 miles to the north of Sacramento along Interstate 5.  Pierce JUSD operates two TK-5 elementary schools. 
One with an enrollment of over 630 students and one with an enrollment with just over 50 students. There is one middle 
school in the district, one comprehensive senior high school and one alternative high school. Agriculture is the main 
industry in the district including annually cultivated crops and orchards as well as a few food processing plants.

Pierce Joint Unified School District has a diverse student population that it serves as represented below.
Hispanic Students: 75%
White Students: 21%
English Learners: 33%
Economically Disadvantaged: 67%
Homeless/Foster Youth: 2.7%

State Academic Standards are implemented in the classrooms. Aligned curriculum to these state standards has been 
purchased for language arts and math. Professional development is ongoing in the district. Wednesdays are used for 
Professional Learning Community time at the sites. This time is also used for grade and department level planning. Staff 
training takes place on Wednesdays too. Instructional coaches are hired to support teachers. New teachers are provided 
mentors.

Because of its rural location, the Pierce District struggles with being able to attract and keep qualified teachers. Teachers 
who commute long distances to teach in the district many times do not stay long-term because they eventually find jobs 
nearer their homes. Maintaining a competitive salary schedule is important to the district to retain qualified staff in order to 
serve its diverse student population.

        

111 of 638

https://www.caschooldashboard.org/#/Details/06616140000000/1/EquityReport


Page 2 of 99

LCAP HIGHLIGHTS 
Identify and briefly summarize the key features of this year’s LCAP.

Pierce Joint Unified School District and its stakeholders determined that the district would continue with its three, previously 
set, goals over the course of the next three years. These goals are broad and measured by the many metrics included 
under each of the goals themselves.

GOAL 1 - Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.  34 
Actions/Services (p.28)
GOAL 2 - Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, 
emotionally, and physically in their schools. 11 Actions/Services (p. 63)
GOAL 3 - Pierce Joint Unified School District will engage families and members of the greater school community as 
educational partners. 8 Actions/Services (p. 75)

        

REVIEW OF PERFORMANCE 

Based on a review of performance on the state indicators and local performance indicators included in the LCFF Evaluation 
Rubrics, progress toward LCAP goals, local self-assessment tools, stakeholder input, or other information, what progress is 
the LEA most proud of and how does the LEA plan to maintain or build upon that success?  This may include identifying 
any specific examples of how past increases or improvements in services for low-income students, English learners, and 
foster youth have led to improved performance for these students.

GREATEST 
PROGRESS

This year the Pierce District was one of twenty-two districts in the state that was recognized by the College 
Board for its increase in the percentage of students taking and passing Advanced Placement (AP) tests with a 
score of 3 or higher, including an increase in its subgroups. The district pays for all students in AP classes to 
take the AP exam at the end of the course. This will continue for those students. Graduation rates in the 
district continue to be in the very high category (100%) for all students and subgroups. One hundred percent 
of the facilities throughout the district meet the standard of being in good repair.  Suspension rates as a 
district overall are in the medium category (4.2%) and showed a decline (1.9%) as indicated by the Spring 
2017 LCAP dashboard. Reducing out-of-school suspension has been a priority this year. The district adopted 
a new Discipline Guide and will continue to look for alternatives to suspension when appropriate. In terms of 
State Academic Indicators, the district has purchased state adopted curriculum for language arts and math. At 
the high school level, English Learner progress on the LCAP rubrics resulted in a "green" because it had a 
status of 'high' and maintained in terms of change. The district strives to maintain these successes.

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator or local performance indicator for which overall 
performance was in the “Red” or “Orange” performance category or where the LEA received a “Not Met” or “Not Met for 
Two or More Years” rating. Additionally, identify any areas that the LEA has determined need significant improvement 
based on review of local performance indicators or other local indicators. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address 
these areas with the greatest need for improvement?

GREATEST 
NEEDS

In the area of mathematics, the LCAP evaluation rubric places the district in the "orange" category because of 
its low status (41.1 points below level 3) and declining change (8.2 points) based on the 2016 CAASPP 
scores. All math subgroups were also in the orange with the exception of Students with Disabilities being in 
the "red" category. The district seeks to have fully credentialed teachers in the classroom for teaching math. 
An instructional coach works with and supports intern teachers. New math curriculum will be piloted at the 
high school next year in some classes.  As a district, the English Learner Progress from the LCAP Evaluation 
Rubric indicated an area of concern as evidenced by the "orange" ranking which was due to the decline of 
scores (-4.4%) when looking at change from one year to the next even though the status was at 73% which is 
in the medium range. The district will maintain the additional ELD teachers that have been added to ensure 
students are getting their designated ELD time. English language arts is an area of concern for the subgroups 
of socioeconomically disadvantaged and students with disabilities subgroups. Both of these groups scored an 
orange and red respectfully. Implementation in terms of ELA curriculum will continue to be a focus in this next 
year which will be the second year with new curriculum. The literacy coach will be providing trainings in the 
summer and throughout the year. Suspension data shows that students with disabilities are getting suspended 
at a high rate as indicated by the "red" on the rubric. Alternatives to suspensions will be sought when 
appropriate. Examples of alternatives include counseling and conflict mediation. 

112 of 638



Page 3 of 99

Referring to the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, identify any state indicator for which performance for any student group was two 
or more performance levels below the “all student” performance. What steps is the LEA planning to take to address these 
performance gaps?

PERFORMANCE 
GAPS

Suspension for Students with Disabilities had a performance gap when compared to 'all' students. The 
district has adopted a new Discipline Guide for the 2017/18 school year.  This guide offers alternatives 
to suspensions when appropriate so that students are not missing educational opportunities. A 
performance gap also exists in language arts for Students with Disabilities. Special Education 
teachers and regular education teachers will collaborate during staff development time to further the 
implementation of instruction of the state academic standards in language arts. 

INCREASED OR IMPROVED SERVICES
If not previously addressed, identify the two to three most significant ways that the LEA will increase or improve services for 
low-income students, English learners, and foster youth.
The district will be hiring an additional 6th grade teacher in order to maintain smaller class sizes. All-day Transitional Kindergarten and 
Kindergarten classes will be implemented and support time from para-educators will be added to these classrooms. Physical Education 
teachers had their schedules rearranged to have a teacher on site all day at the middle school. This will allow for class sizes to be 
balanced throughout the day. Additional campus supervisor time will be required due to this change so that locker rooms can be 
supervised. The high school will have four English teachers this year.         

BUDGET SUMMARY
Complete the table below. LEAs may include additional information or more detail, including graphics.

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

Total General Fund Budget Expenditures for LCAP Year $15,827,817

----------Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet 
the Goals in the LCAP for LCAP Year

$3,247,963

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool but may not describe all General Fund Budget Expenditures.  
Briefly describe any of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the LCAP year not included in the LCAP.

The following are General Fund Budget Expenditures not included in the LCAP:
• Core Instructional costs for salary and benefits, textbooks, instructional materials, and supplies/equipment.
• Health Services, Administrative services, Transportation, and Special Education excess cost.
• Maintenance and Operations, Deferred Maintenance, Routine Restricted Maintenance and Facility Costs.

        

$13,849,132 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year

113 of 638



Page 4 of 99

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
1

Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

(a) 92 students enrolled in 3 AP classes, increase to 160 students with 8 
AP classes

(b) 98-100% AP exam participation rate (15-16), maintain
(c) 48.6% AP exam passage rate, increase by 10% (14-15 data)

(d) 28.7% UC/CSU a-g enrollment rate of seniors, increase to 33% (14-
15 data)

(e) 38% CAASPP ELA proficiency, increase to 44%; 33% CAASPP 
math proficiency (14-15 data), increase to 38%
(f) AMAO #1 maintain meeting target of 60.5% - no new data release 
expected

(g) AMAO #2 <5 years, maintain meeting target of 24.2% - no new data 
release expected

(h) AMAO #2 >5 years, maintain meeting target of 50.9% - no new data 
release expected

(i) 15% EAP college ready criteria met in ELA (14-15 data), increase to 
20%

(j) 10% EAP college ready criteria met in math (14-15 data), increase to 
15%

(a) 139 students enrolled in 8 AP classes (16-17)

(b) 100% participation rate
(c) 48.6% AP exam passage rate was actually the 15-16 data. 2016-17 data will not be 
available until after June 30.

(d) 27.3% UC/CSU a-g enrollment rate of seniors (15-16)

(e) 39% CAASPP ELA proficiency; 29% math proficiency (15/16)

(f) AMAO data not available

(g) AMAO data not available

(h) AMAO data not available

(i) 10.5% EAP college ready criteria in ELA (15/16)

(j) 1.9% EAP college ready criteria in math (15/16)

114 of 638



Page 5 of 99

(k) 98.8% High school graduation rate (14-15 data), maintain at 95%
(l) 1.2% high school drop-out rate (14-15 data), maintain
(m) 34.2% AES/13.7% GI (grades K-5) students at or above norm grade 
level mean RIT on NWEA reading (15-16), increase 5%
(n)    44.9% JJH students at or above norm grade level mean RIT on 
NWEA reading (15-16), increase 5%

(o)   47.6% PHS students(grades 9-11) at or above grade level mean 
RIT on NWEA reading (15-16), increase 5%
(p)   0% middle school dropout rate (14-15 data), maintain
(q)  100% of teachers are properly credentialed and assigned, maintain
(r)   100% of students have standards-aligned instructional materials, 
maintain

(s)   100% of K-12 teachers will have at least 3 days of professional 
development in ELA, math or subject area specific content of CCSS, 
ELD training, and Next Generation Science Standards and/or STEM
(t)   10.2% Reclassification Rate (14-15 data), increase to 20%
(u)  47.7% of 5th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT, increase 
to 50%

(v)   21.8% of 7th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT, 
increase to 25%

(w)   32.5% of 9th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT, 
increase to 35%

(x)   33% of 5th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (14-15 data), 
increase by 5%

(y)   43% of 8th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (14-15 data), 
increase by 5%

(z)   30% of 10th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (14-15 data), 
increase by 5%

(aa) 85% CTE pathway completer (14-15), increase by 3%
(bb) 100% of students have access to and are enrolled in all required 
areas of study, maintain

(cc)  25% CTE course enrollment rate (14-15)
(dd)   API data no longer available
       

(k) 99.9% graduation rate (15/16)
(l) .01% high school drop-out rate (15/16)
(m) 37.5% AES/30.3% GI students at or above norm grade level mean RIT on NWEA 
reading (16-17), increase of 3.3% and 16.6% respectively
(n) 34% JJH students at or above norm grade level mean RIT on NWEA reading (16-
17), decrease of 10.9%

(o)  62% PHS students (9-11) at or above norm grade level mean RIT on NWEA 
reading (16-17), 14.4% increase
(p) 0% middle school dropout rate (15/16)
(q) 95.7% of teachers are properly credentialed and assigned
(r) 100% of students have standards-aligned instructional materials

(s) 100% of TK-12 teachers have at least 3 days of professional development in ELA, 
Math or subject area specific content of CCSS, ELD training, and Next Generation 
Science Standards and/or STEM
(t) 10.2% Reclassification rate (15/16)
(u) 39.1%  of 5th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT (15/16)

(v) 36.6%  of 7th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT (15/16)

(w) 41.1%  of 9th graders met 6/6 fitness standards on the PFT (15/16)

(x) 34.3% of 5th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (15/16)

(y) 46% of 8th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (15/16)

(z) 32% of 10th graders Pro/Adv. on CST science test (15/16)

(aa) 89% CTE pathway completers (15/16)
(bb) 100% of students have access to and are enrolled in all required areas of study

(cc) 44% CTE course enrollment rate (15/16)
(dd) API data not available

115 of 638



Page 6 of 99

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue administrative & staff training and feedback on 
effective instructional strategies for quality first instruction in the 
classroom and EL engagement strategies       

ACTUAL
Principals did weekly instructional messages to staff. They 
conducted walk-throughs in the classroom and provided 
teachers written feedback. English Learner (EL) Coordinator 
provided staff development to teachers. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $22,332

  Supplemental and Concentration $15,000   Supplemental and Concentration 
  Title II $15,000    

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Purchase Common Core aligned ELA adoption ELD materials, 
STEM materials, computer technology curriculum and 
supplementary materials       

ACTUAL
English Language Arts and English Language Development 
curriculum was purchased K-12. STEM materials were 
purchased for the elementary and middle schools. Curriculum 
for the computer technology class was purchased. Curriculum 
for dual enrollment classes was purchased for the high school. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   

  Supplemental and Concentration $35,000   Supplemental and Concentration $27,361
Discretionary Funds   $327,306 Discretionary Funds   $348,181

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Grade level & team collaboration time for instructional 
conversations around the Common Core State Standards, 
which could include aligning units and assessments.        

ACTUAL
Grade level and department collaboration took place on 
Wednesdays during early-release time. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   

  Supplemental and Concentration $165,590   Supplemental and Concentration $194,402
  Title I $10,000    
  Title II $15,000    

116 of 638



Page 7 of 99

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Common Core, STEM, NGSS, ELD, technology and formative 
assessment professional development trainings on and offsite       

ACTUAL
Trainings were held during staff development days that were 
part of the teacher calendar and during early-release time on 
Wednesdays. ELD Coordinator and instructional coaches 
along with the principals facilitated the trainings. Teams of 
teachers attended off-site trainings as well including Next 
Generation Science Standards and the Kindergarten 
Conference. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $89,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   $45,000

  Title I $5,000   Supplemental and Concentration 
  Title II $5,000    

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue vertical articulation time between and amongst 
schools including release time for peer observations       

ACTUAL
Vertical articulation conversations among teachers regarding 
curriculum implementation took place among grade levels and 
subjects at school sites. Vertical articulation between schools 
did not occur due to scheduling conflicts between school sites. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $6,500 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $4,933

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide training to staff on using the digital library as a 
resource including the utilization of Interim Block Assessments 
(IBA) for instructional feedback       

ACTUAL
Instructional coaches and testing coordinator attended two-
day training on the digital library and the IABs (Interim 
Assessment Blocks). The coaches then came back and 
presented to each of the schools. Teachers committed to 
administering some of the IABs. 

Expenditures
  Supplemental and Concentration $43,217   Supplemental and Concentration $16,060

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue utilizing Illuminate as student assessment data 
information system, grading system and report cards for grades 
TK-5. Create assessments in Illuminate linked to standards for 

ACTUAL
Illuminate is being used as the student grading system for 
grades TK-5. Teachers at the elementary schools and high 
school are using the system for formative assessment as well. 

117 of 638



Page 8 of 99

grades TK-12. Utilize training provided by Illuminate or 
teachers on site.       

Administrators received training on the Business Intelligence 
Tool in Illuminate.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $18,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $13,222

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue with additional para-educator time at Grand Island       

ACTUAL
Para-educator position was continued at Grand Island.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $13,530 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $17,005

Action    9
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain .5 ELD teacher at GI & maintain additional .5 ELD 
teacher at AES. Provide ELD teacher specific to JJH for 
designated ELD time.        

ACTUAL
.5 ELD teacher at Grand Island and additional .5 ELD teacher 
at AES was maintained. A full-time ELD teacher was hired for 
the middle school for designated ELD time. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $197,622 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $99,453

      Title III $56,983
      Title I $56,983

Action    10
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain agriculture/fabrication wood program as a CTE course       

ACTUAL
Agriculture/fabrication wood CTE program was maintained.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $96,487 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $97,753

Action    11
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain K-3 CSR & 5th grade instructors       

ACTUAL
K-3 CSR and 5th grade teachers were maintained.

Expenditures
  Supplemental and Concentration $212,235   Supplemental and Concentration $224,969

Action    12
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain and remain current with 1:1 technology devices for 
student access to technology. Also, maintain teacher's 

ACTUAL
Maintained 1:1 devices for grades 1-12. Purchased 36 student 
devices for TK and kindergarten. Teacher devices were 

118 of 638



Page 9 of 99

classroom technology tools such as iPads, document cameras, 
Apple TVs       

purchased as necessary.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $250,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $146,226

Action    13
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue having technology employee provide staff training on 
incorporating technology into the curriculum and to repair and 
maintain equipment so that it is always ready for classroom use       

ACTUAL
Computer technician provided staff development to teachers 
during staff development time. She worked 1:1 with teachers 
as needed to support technology use. She worked on 
technology issues that were submitted through the work order 
process. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $31,822 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $34,708

  Supplemental and Concentration $31,822   Supplemental and Concentration $34,708

Action    14
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue transportation for late bus route to extend school day 
for RtI.  Continue to provide late bus route to Grimes to 
accommodate students at JJH and PHS.  Continue transporting 
GI ASES students home after the program.        

ACTUAL
Late bus route ran for students staying for interventions on 
Mondays, Tuesdays and Thursdays. Buses took students to 
Dunnigan and Grimes. Transportation provided for Grand 
Island ASES program every evening. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $30,389 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $17,593

  After School Education and Safety (ASES) $10,936   After School Education and Safety (ASES) $8,095

Action    15
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain three additional staff development days for teacher 
training        

ACTUAL
Three additional staff development days were included in the 
teacher calendar. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $88,183 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $97,346

Action    16
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Teacher salary and health benefits increased in 14/15 to retain 
experienced and qualified staff. Pay for beginning teacher 
training for those teachers clearing their credential through the 

ACTUAL
Teacher salary and health benefits that were increased in 
14/15 to retain experienced and quality staff continued. District 
paid for Induction Program for beginning teachers. 

119 of 638



Page 10 of 99

Tri-County Induction Program.       

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $432,787

  Supplemental and Concentration $394,322    

Action    17
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Sacramento State Summer Academies for high school 
students, including registration fees, transportation for students       

ACTUAL
Approximately 76 students are scheduled for the Summer 
Academies in the summer of 2017. Registration fees, lunches 
and transportation will be provided. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $25,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $16,825

Action    18
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire a TK-12 Instructional Coach       

ACTUAL
TK-12 grade instructional coach was hired. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $89,663 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Title I $98,787

Action    19
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue having tutors after school at the high school to assist 
with math.       

ACTUAL
Tutors were not hired to assist with math. Math teachers 
provided the tutoring after school. Some of the math classes 
had access to Fueled Education online math support. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $3,213 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $4,878

Action    20
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue increasing library book collections at the elementary 
and middle schools. Add access to online research resources 
at the high school such as EBSCOhost and California 
Streaming.       

ACTUAL
Library books were purchased at all of the school sites. 
California Streaming was purchased for the high school. 
EBSCO host did not get implemented at the high school this 
year because it was not offered through LACOE this year. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $703

Instructional Material-Lottery   $6,500 Instructional Material-Lottery   $2,250

120 of 638



Page 11 of 99

Action    21
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Partner with Woodland Community College for dual enrollment 
for students at our high school to receive both high school and 
college credit for qualifying courses. Purchase textbooks for the 
qualifying courses.        

ACTUAL
Dual enrollment classes began at PHS. Five classes with a 
total of 15 sections were offered. Textbooks were purchased 
to support those classes. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Instructional Materials-Lottery   $3,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Instructional Materials-Lottery   $3,500

Action    22
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to use Edivate as an online resource tool for staff 
development and instructional feedback.       

ACTUAL
Edivate is continuing to be used by the site administrators to 
provide written feedback to teachers following walk-through 
observations. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $13,596 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $14,980

Action    23
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to hire regular day teachers to provide tutoring and 
instruction after school.       

ACTUAL
Teachers were hired and provided tutoring to students after 
school. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $35,863 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $26,678

  Title I $15,500    
  After School Education and Safety (ASES) $17,461   After School Education and Safety (ASES) $17,038

Action    24
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Advanced Placement exam dues paid for students taking AP 
courses       

ACTUAL
Advanced Placement exam dues paid for students enrolled in 
AP classes. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   

  Supplemental and Concentration $7,000   Supplemental and Concentration $10,174

Action    25
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide summer school instruction four hours per day for 15 

ACTUAL
Summer school instruction to take place June 12-30. 

121 of 638



Page 12 of 99

days grades K-12       

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $31,681 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $32,483

Migrant Ed   $38,382 Migrant Ed   $38,328

Action    26
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue ST Math subscriptions for grades TK, K-6, and 
intervention licenses for grades 7 & 8. Continue using 
Edmentum at the high school level for intervention and credit 
recovery. Purchase Compass Learning online resource for 
student use in grades TK-5.        

ACTUAL
ST Math subscriptions were continued for grades TK-6 and 
intervention licenses for grades 7 & 8. Edmentum was 
purchased for use at the high school. Compass Learning was 
purchased for the elementary schools. Fueled Ed online 
resource was purchased for use in the high school math 
classes taught by a substitute teacher.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $10,781 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $14,441

  Title I $1,634 Instructional Materials   $28,030
  Title III $3,182    
Discretionary funds    $35,687 Discretionary Funds   $30,633
  After School Education and Safety (ASES) $7,000   After School Education and Safety (ASES) $12,054

Action    27
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue NWEA and MAP assessment licensing       

ACTUAL
NWEA and MAP assessment licensing was purchased. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $22,065 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $22,065

Action    28
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue using NWEA assessment system, trainings for 
teachers and administrators, and reporting to stakeholders       

ACTUAL
NWEA assessment is being utilized 3 times per year and 
reported to School Site Councils and school board. Teachers 
have received training on how to read the reports. Teachers 
are usng the reports to set goals with students. Reports are 
being given to parents. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $15,000  

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $22,428

Action    29

122 of 638



Page 13 of 99

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Continue to offer 5 periods of support during the regular day 
utilizing the Edmentum Curriculum       

ACTUAL
Five periods of support during the regular day were offered 
utilizing Edmentum. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $70,381 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $75,154

Action    30
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide career/college exploration field trip opportunities for 
middle school students offered through nearby colleges.       

ACTUAL
Students attended a STEM workshop for middle school girls at 
Butte College. A visit to UC Davis also took place for middle 
school students. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $4,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   0

Action    31
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Purchase curriculum for Special Education students       

ACTUAL
Online curriculum was purchased to be used for students with 
disabilities in the special education classrooms.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Instructional Materials-Lottery   $5,100 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Instructional Materials-Lottery   $5,815

Action    32
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire computer/technology teacher for middle school and 
purchase curriculum for the class.       

ACTUAL
Computer/technology teacher was hired at the middle school 
and Learning.com curriculum was purchased.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $68,384 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $55,544

    Instructional Materials   $3,500

123 of 638



Page 14 of 99

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and Services for this goal were implemented as planned with the only exception being the hiring of 
tutors for high school students and vertical articulation between schools. These tutors were not hired 
because the high school teachers themselves offered tutoring after school three days per week. Articulation 
among schools took place but not between schools.  With the shortage of teachers, the district employed 
two interns and one teacher on a short-term staff permit. Two long-term substitutes were on permits as well. 

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to 
achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

With the addition of more Advanced Placement (AP) classes and paying the AP testing fee for students, the 
district received recognition from the College Board for increasing the number of students testing for AP and 
for increasing the number of students with passing scores including subgroups.  The high school graduation 
rate reached 100% and the drop-out rate was less than 1%. Dual enrollment classes at the high school level 
are allowing students to receive college course credit this year for the first time. Our UC/CSU a-g enrollment 
rate is not showing an increase as of yet because the data being utilize is 4-year cohort data; however, we 
know the results will be positive over the course of the next few years because many additional courses 
have been a-g approved.

NWEA is now fully implemented at all of the school sites. This assessment is given to students three times 
per year. Teachers and administrators now have local data to analyze throughout the year to see how 
students are progressing and to be able to determine areas where students need extra support.

Students K-12 have new language arts curriculum that is aligned to the state standards. This was the first 
year of the district teachers utilizing that particular curriculum. Teachers received staff development for that 
specific curriculum. Further training on the ELD standards is needed even though the materials are part of 
the language arts adoption.

Support for interns, teachers on permits and beginning teachers was substantially increased this year with 
the hiring of an instructional coach who provided training and feedback. The literacy coach supported 
classroom teachers as well. Both the literacy coach and the instructional coach provided staff development 
to teachers at all sites and were participating members of grade level or content specific Professional 
Learning Communities (PLC).

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Action/Service #1 - ELD Coordinator time for delivering EL content was not included in the budgeted 
amount but is included in the estimated actual.
Action/Service #6 - Cost of implementing IAB training was less than anticipated causing the estimated 
actual to be lower than the budgeted amount.
Action/Service #12 - Overestimated the need for getting 1:1 with technology devices for students and 
additional technology equipment for teachers.
Action/Service #30 - Students participated in the programs but a grant through probation covered the costs 
including transportation.
All Actions/Services that included salaries were underestimated in the budget because staff received a pay 

124 of 638



Page 15 of 99

increase during the school year that was retroactive to July 2016.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Changes to Expected Outcomes and Metrics:

State Indicators will be used in 2017/18 LCAP where applicable.

Changes to Actions/Services from 2016/17 LCAP to 2017/18 LCAP:

Deleting Action/Service #19 - Tutors are not being hired to assist high school students with math because 
teachers are doing the tutoring after school.
Deleting Action/Service #28 - completed action

125 of 638



Page 16 of 99

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
2

Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, emotionally, and physically in their 
schools.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

(a) 97.1% attendance rate (15-16), maintain
(b) 13% chronic absenteeism rate (15-16), decrease by 2%
(c) 6% suspension rate (15-16), decrease to 5%
(d) 0% expulsion rate (15-16), maintain at <1%
(e) 4.3% F’s at high school per semester (spring 15-16), maintain at 5% 
or less
(f) 9% D’s at high school per semester (spring 15-16), decrease 8% or 
less
(g) 43 Discipline referrals at AES (15-16 data), maintain at 50 or less
(h) 1 Discipline referrals at GI (15-16 data), maintain at 10 or less
(i) 400 Discipline referrals at PHS (15-16 data), decrease to 350
(j) 50 Discipline referrals at JJH (15-16), maintain
(k) 17 Discipline referrals at AAHS (15-16), maintain at 20 or less
(l) 15 Bus referrals district-wide (15-16), maintain at 20 or less
(m) 100% of school sites have a facility rating of exemplary based on 
FIT data (15-16 data), maintain
(n) 21% of 5th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they feel 
they are part of the school, increase to 30% for 17/18 school year
(o)   81% of 7th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school, increase to 85% for 17/18 school year
(p)   62% of 9th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school, increase to 67% for 17/18 school year
(q)   48% of 11th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school, increase to 53% for 17/18 school year
(r)    81% of 5th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school, increase to 84% for 17/18 school year

(a) 96.6% (16/17)
(b) 6% (15/16)  the reported 13% was an error; 4.9% (16/17)
(c) 3.6% suspension rate for (16/17)
(d) 2 students expelled in 16/17 school year
(e) 3.3% F rate (fall semester 15/16)

(f) 10.5% D rate (fall semester 15/16)

(g) 176 discipline referrals (16/17)
(h) 38 discipline referrals (16/17)
(i) 368 discipline referrals (16/17)
(j) 30 discipline referrals (16/17)
(k) 8 discipline referrals (16/17)
(l) 51 bus referrals (16/17)
(m) 100% of school sites have exemplary facility rating (16/17)

(n) data not available this year

(o) data not available this year

(p) data not available this year

(q) data not available this year

(r) data not available this year

126 of 638



Page 17 of 99

(s)    82% of 7th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school, increase to 85% for 17/18 school year
(t) 77% of 9th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they feel 
safe at school, increase to 79% for 17/18 school year
(u) 74% of 11th graders on the HKS agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school, increase to 79%
(v)   11 F’s in high school P.E. per semester (spring 2016 data), 
maintain at 10 or less students

       

(s) data not available this year

(t) data not available this year

(u) data not available this year

(v) 16 F's in high school PE (fall semester 15/16)

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain prevention/intervention counselor       

ACTUAL
Prevention/intervention counselor position maintained. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $105,710 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $113,018

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain facility services at school sites which included an 
additional 1.5 hours to overall classified custodial staff time that 
was increased in the 15/16 school year.        

ACTUAL
Facility services were maintained at the school sites including 
the additional 1.5 hours added to the overall classified 
custodial staff time that was increased in the 15/16 school 
year. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $6,348 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $6,538

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain extra-curricular funding       

ACTUAL
Extra curricular funding was maintained. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $12,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $12,000

Action    4
127 of 638



Page 18 of 99

Actions/Services
PLANNED
Maintain school clubs and activities for academic enrichment       

ACTUAL
School clubs and activities for academic enrichment were 
maintained. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $8,750 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $9,013

  After School Education and Safety (ASES) $8,750   After School Education and Safety (ASES) $8,750

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain campus supervisor position for students waiting for 
bus for late route       

ACTUAL
Campus supervisor position for students waiting for bus for 
late route was maintained. 

Expenditures
  Supplemental and Concentration $5,450   After School Education and Safety (ASES) $1,205

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain para-professional for TK classroom to provide 
academic support and supervision due to no classroom 
restroom       

ACTUAL
Para-educator for TK classroom to provide academic support 
and supervision due to no classroom restroom was 
maintained. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $22,136

  Title I $20,541    

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain college/career counseling technician to work with high 
school counselor to support students on their college and 
career readiness plans beginning in middle school and 
continuing in high school. Continue with career navigation 
software.        

ACTUAL
College/career counseling technician to work with high school 
counselor to support students on their college and career 
readiness plans beginning in middle school and continuing in 
high school was maintained. Career navigation software 
continued to be used. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $49,221 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $52,266

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain full time elementary vice principal for student support       

ACTUAL
Full-time elementary vice principal for student support was 
maintained. 

128 of 638



Page 19 of 99

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $69,295 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $74,217

Action    9
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain additional Physical Education teacher at elementary 
level to ensure required PE minutes are met.       

ACTUAL
Additional PE teacher time at the elementary school was 
maintained which ensured students received the required 
number of PE minutes. 

Expenditures
  Base $74,088   Base $71,228

Action    10
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to offer ROP/CTE courses for students         

ACTUAL
ROP/CTE courses continued to be offered. 

Expenditures
  Base $95,552   Base $95,522

Action    11
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue College and Career Club program by creating a 
semester-long course for both 7th and 8th grades. Continue 
with curriculum and teacher salary for 4 periods of the course 
offering.        

ACTUAL
College and Career Club became a semester long course for 
both 7th and 8th grades for 4 periods of the school day. 
Curriculum continued to be used.

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $55,081 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $42,970

Action    12
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Add additional music teacher to increase the offerings at PHS 
& JJH. Purchase musical instruments for the necessary 
courses       

ACTUAL
Music teacher was added that worked only at PHS because 
an art teacher resigned at the last minute and additional 
sections of music were needed for the master schedule. 
Musical instruments were purchased.

Expenditures
  Base $87,781   Base $92,458

Action    13
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Purchase video camera system for buses       

ACTUAL
Video camera system was purchased and installed in buses. 

129 of 638



Page 20 of 99

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $30,237 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $29,914

Action    14
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Hire part-time nurse and health aide       

ACTUAL
Part-time nurse and part-time health aide were hired. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $37,227 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Base $39,787

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services for this goal were fully implemented. Most of the actions/services were ones that were 
being maintained from previous years. Adding a music teacher, installing bus video cameras and hiring a 
part-time nurse and health aide were completed. The music teacher position only served the high school 
because additional sections were needed for the master schedule because of a resignation of an art 
teacher that was not filled.

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to 
achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

This year the California School Dashboard has the district suspension rate at 4.2% for status and a decline 
of 1.9% for change based on 2014-15 data. For 2015-16 our suspension data has been calculated at 6% for 
status which would be an increase of 1.8%. With that data information, the district will be perceived as 
performing worse on the suspension rate; however, we anticipate an improvement based on 2016-17 
calculations that will not be reported on the California School Dashboard because the state data is not as 
current as the local data. A focus this year on transitioning from a discipline matrix to a discipline guide has 
allowed for administration to look at each discipline offense as a unique situation which has led to an 
anticipated decrease in the total number of suspensions. Sites are seeking alternatives to suspensions in 
order to keep students in school and learning.

Monitoring of Chronic Absenteeism has been a focus this year. It is anticipated that there will be a slight 
decrease in the percent of students labeled as Chronically Absent. As of April 2017 there were 5.8% 
students that were considered such, down from 6% last year. We need to continue to focus early in the year 
with the students who are on course to be defined as chronically absent.

Video cameras on the school buses has increased the positive behavior on the buses according to 
anecdotal comments from the bus drivers. Administrators and the director of transportation can use the 
videos when incidents occur on the routes to clearly get an understanding of what occurred and deal with it 
appropriately,

--------

130 of 638



Page 21 of 99

Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Action/Service #5 - Campus supervisor position was for 3 days per week and not for the entire school year. 
It was budgeted for more time.
All Actions/Services that included salaries were underestimated in the budget because staff received a pay 
increase during the school year that was retroactive to July 2016.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Changes to Expected Outcomes and Metrics:

Grades of D & F will not be used at the high school level as an indicator. The state College/Career Indicator 
will gauge student readiness and their being on track for college and career. Discipline referrals and bus 
referrals will not be tracked as a metric, instead the state Suspension Indicator will be used to monitor 
school climate. The metric of monitoring grades of F in Physical Education will no longer be a metric. By 
removing PE grades from this goal, LCAP State Priority #8 will no longer apply to Goal #2.

Changes to Actions/Services from 2016/17 LCAP to 2017/18 LCAP:

Actions/Services #6, 7, & 11 were moved to Goal #1. These particular Actions/Services match with Goal #1 
more so than with Goal #2.
Action #11 will be changing from College and Career Club class and curriculum to middle school version of 
Get Focused, Stay Focused curriculum for the 8th grade. Life Skills will be the 7th grade course. This is now 
Action/Service #13 in Goal #1 of 17/18 LCAP
Action/Service #6 in Annual Update can now be found under Goal #1, Action/Service #3 in 17/18 LCAP
Action/Service #7 in Annual Update can now be found under Goal #1, Action/Service #11 in 17/18 LCAP

131 of 638



Page 22 of 99

Annual Update LCAP Year Reviewed:   2016-17

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Goal
3

Pierce Joint Unified School District will engage families and members of the greater school community as educational partners.       

----------State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
COE       9 10
LOCAL   

ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

EXPECTED ACTUAL

(a) 35.4% of JJH parents have access to grading portal, increase to 
40%
(b) 56.6% of high school parents have access to grading portal, increase 
to 60%
(c) 26 DART referrals, decrease to 25 or less
(d) Offer PIQE parent engagement workshop for elementary level 
parents
(e) 100% of school sites will request parent feedback through end-of-
year surveys, maintain

       

(a) 53.3% as of 2/23/17

(b) 81.5% as of 2/23/17

(c) 58 DART referrals
(d) PIQE workshops held

(e) 100% conducted parent surveys

ACTIONS / SERVICES

Duplicate the Actions/Services from the prior year LCAP and complete a copy of the following table for each. Duplicate the table as needed.

startcollapse

Action    1
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain parent training on how to access abi.net parent portal 
for student attendance and grades. Include access for signing-
up during Back-to-School Nights.        

ACTUAL
In lieu of training, information sheets were mailed to parents 
on how to access the parent portal and create parent 
accounts. The information sheets contained school contact 

132 of 638



Page 23 of 99

information if parents needed assistance with the process. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $1,055 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $300

Action    2
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue staff training and time for using Aeries system to 
communicate with parents regarding grades and upcoming 
assignments       

ACTUAL
Staff received training on inputting information into the system 
to allow parents to see assignments that were forthcoming. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Base $8,050 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $2,550

Action    3
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue Edu-link contract to allow phone and email message 
communication with parents.        

ACTUAL
Edu-link contract was continued for phone and email 
communication with parents. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Year 3 of a 3 year contract    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   0

Action    4
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue holding CTE/Agriculture advisory committee meetings 
four times per year       

ACTUAL
CTE/Agriculture advisory committee meetings were held four 
times during the year. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
No cost associated with this action    

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   0

Action    5
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to update and provide high school parents by grade 
level with a timeline of important dates for ensuring their 
student is prepared for college or career entry.  This includes 
dates of assessments such as PSAT, AP, SAT, ACT, and 
dates of college deadlines and scholarship deadlines.  This is a 
type of Parent “Survival” guide.       

ACTUAL
Parents of high school students were provided with grade 
level timelines of important dates for ensuring their student is 
prepared for college or career entry. This information included 
dates of assessments for PSAT, AP, SAT, Act and dates of 
college deadlines and scholarship deadlines. 

Expenditures
  Supplemental and Concentration $282   Supplemental and Concentration $282

133 of 638



Page 24 of 99

Action    6
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to communicate with parents on a regular basis 
regarding student opportunities to fulfill college and career 
goals. Meet with incoming 8th graders and their parents to work 
on student's high school plan.        

ACTUAL
Parents continue to receive information on opportunities for 
their students to fulfill college and career goals through 
newsletters, emails, parent conferences and parent 
workshops. Parents of 8th graders were able to attend an 
informational evening on registering for classes for high 
school.  

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $2,691 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $2,691

Action    7
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue to provide transportation for parents to Sacramento 
State Academy Orientation       

ACTUAL
Orientation will not occur until June. This is still available to 
parents. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $1,500 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   0

Action    8
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Maintain App for district and site information/communication 
with parents and community       

ACTUAL
Mobile App for district and site communication is being used. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
  Supplemental and Concentration $3,500 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
  Supplemental and Concentration $3,500

Action    9
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Continue Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE). Training 
will be for elementary school parents       

ACTUAL
PIQE was offered in the fall at the elementary school. 

Expenditures
BUDGETED
Migrant Education   $3,000 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
Migrant Education   $3,000

  Supplemental and Concentration $7,000   Supplemental and Concentration $5,938

Action    10
Actions/Services

PLANNED
Provide classroom space for CCOE to offer adult ESL classes 
in the evenings       

ACTUAL
Classroom space was provided to CCOE for the ESL classes. 

134 of 638



Page 25 of 99

Expenditures
BUDGETED
In-kind   $850 

ESTIMATED ACTUAL
   0

ANALYSIS
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals from the prior year LCAP. Duplicate the table as needed.

Use actual annual measurable outcome data, including performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services 
to achieve the articulated goal.

Actions and services for this goal have been implemented as planned with the exception of providing a 
parent training for accessing the parent portal because information sheets were sent home instead and 
parents attending the Sacramento State Academy Orientation due to the fact that it is not offered until the 
middle of June. All of the actions/services were continued or maintained from the previous year except for 
the providing classroom space for adult ESL classes. 

--------Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to 
achieve the articulated goal as measured by the LEA.

Parent graduation from the PIQE program has been at least 30-40 parents each year taking part in the 11 
week classes. There has been an increase in the number of parents who now have access rights to the 
student information system for students of high school and middle school. Communication to parents is 
done through various methods including phone calls, emails and push notifications on the district App. 
School sites keep their websites current with up-to-date information. Communication to parents is either in 
English or Spanish based on parents preference. 

--------Explain material differences between Budgeted 
Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures.

Action/Service #2 - More training time was budgeted than was actually needed for teachers to become 
competent in using the system.
Action/Service #7 - Students did not attend an orientation so there was not a need to transport the parents.

--------Describe any changes made to this goal, expected 
outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to achieve this 
goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable. Identify where those 
changes can be found in the LCAP.

Changes to Expected Outcomes and Metrics:

For the 2017/18 LCAP the district will be measuring parent participation by tracking attendance at advisory 
committee meetings to meet the requirement of 'seeking input in school/district decision making'. For 
'promoting participation in programs', the district will track the number of trainings or workshops offered for 
parents/guardians that are linked to student learning and/or social-emotional development and growth. The 
previously listed outcomes and metrics from the 2016/17 LCAP will not be utilized any longer.

Changes to Actions/Services from 2016/17 LCAP to 2017/18 LCAP:

Deleting Action/Service #2 because the teachers have been trained. Deleting Action/Service # 7 because 
students are receiving orientation at the school versus going to the college campus.

135 of 638



Page 26 of 99

Stakeholder Engagement
--------------------LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How, when, and with whom did the LEA consult as part of the planning process for this LCAP/Annual Review and Analysis?

The Pierce Joint Unified School District embraces the process of stakeholder engagement and appreciates the input and discussions regarding the LCAP that come from these 
meetings.

11/8/16 Administrative Team meeting with Superintendent
12/13/16 Administrative Team meeting with Superintendent
2/6/17 District English Learner Advisory Committee (DELAC) meeting with Superintendent
2/7/17 District Advisory Committee (DAC) meeting with Superintendent
2/8/17 Pierce High School staff meeting for LCAP input
2/8/17 Pierce High School School Site Council meeting with principal for LCAP input
2/9/17 School Site Council meeting at Grand Island with site principal
3/17/17 Johnson Jr. High Staff reviewed CA Data Dashboard during staff development day
3/22/17 Board of Trustees and administrators reviewed the CA Data Dashboard and the Annual Update. Input to the LCAP for 17/18 was given.
3/29/17 Arbuckle Elementary and Grand Island Elementary Staff reviewed CA Data Dashboard during staff development time
4/3/17 Johnson Jr. High School Site Council reviewed CA Dashboard Data and gave input to LCAP
4/18/17 Parent, staff stakeholder meeting, including CSEA union, reviewed annual update, CA Dashboard Data and input into LCAP development
4/18/17 Arbuckle Elementary School Site Council reviewed CA Dashboard Data and gave input for next year's LCAP
4/19/17 Met with Pierce High School students from Leadership Class to review annual update and seek input into next year's LCAP
4/20/17 Grand Island School Site Council reviewed CA Dashboard Data and gave input into LCAP for following year.
5/2/17 DELAC meeting with Superintendent
6/15/17 DAC meeting with Superintendent
6/22/17 Public Hearing of LCAP and LCFF at regularly scheduled board meeting
6/26/17 Board approval of LCAP and LCFF at regularly scheduled board meeting

Community Engagement - The following groups were actively involved in the LCAP development process:

Parents: Principals presented the Annual Update progress during the year at School Site Council Meetings and English Learner Advisory Committee meetings. California Data 
Dashboard information was presented to the groups and input for the 17/18 LCAP was sought.

District English Language Advisory Committee: Superintendent met two times during the year with this committee. The first meeting was sharing progress on current year's LCAP. 
Second meeting was to present Annual Update to the group, California Dashboard Data for the district and to seek input for 17/18 LCAP.

Administrative Staff: At administrative team meetings the group checked progress of LCAP and worked on Annual Update. They dissected the district data from the California Data 
Dashboard. Input was given by the group as the LCAP was being developed.

Students: Superintendent met with the students in a leadership class at the high school. The Annual Update was shared and input was given by the students.

Teachers, including teachers from the local bargaining unit: Principals at all sites presented the Annual Update to the teachers. At a later date they presented the California Data 
Dashboard for the district and their specific sites. Teachers were given the opportunity to give input into the 17/18 LCAP.

Classified Staff including local bargaining unit members: Annual Update was reviewed along with data from the state in regards to the district. Input was sought for the development 

136 of 638



Page 27 of 99

of the 17/18 LCAP.

Board of Trustees: LCAP updates were part of the regular board meetings. During an administrative planning day, the board was presented with the California Data Dashboard 
information from the district. The Annual Update was reviewed and input for the 17/18 LCAP was given.

District Advisory Committee: Met with Superintendent to review progress on the current year's LCAP in February. These members are also part of each of the schools' site councils 
so they were able to give input there. In June this group met to review the draft LCAP.
       

INVOLVEMENT PROCESS FOR LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE
IMPACT ON LCAP AND ANNUAL UPDATE

How did these consultations impact the LCAP for the upcoming year?

Discussions and feedback were based on (1) what is already in place that needs to continue, (2) what is already in place that needs to be improved, (3) what can be eliminated, and 
(4) ideas for adding actions/services that are not already included in the LCAP.

Ideas that emerged from the different stakeholder groups included; improving math scores, focusing on Next Generation Science Standards and curriculum for those standards, 
continuing with instructional coaches,  adding additional sections of English at the high school level, supporting the implementation of full-day kindergarten, furthering class size 
reduction, continuing college-going mindset, supporting clubs, sports and enrichment activities, strengthen vertical articulation between schools, offer reading incentives at the 
middle school,  dividing PE time for more balanced class sizes, continuing credit recovery at the high school level through computer programs, deeper implementation of ELA 
curriculum

Specific Actions and Services added as a result of this stakeholder engagement process include:
1. Hiring para-educators to support the implementation of full-day kindergarten
2. Hiring 6th grade teacher to reduce class size for large student cohort group next year
3. Ensuring each site has one PE teacher on campus all day to balance class sizes for core courses and hiring campus supervisor(s) to supervise locker rooms when only one PE 
teacher is available and two locker rooms need supervising
4. Purchasing 6th grade math that articulates from the K-5 program
5. Providing staff development specific to language arts and the newly adopted curriculum

       

137 of 638



Page 28 of 99

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 1 Pierce Joint Unified School District students will graduate high school college and career ready.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need 2015/16 California Dashboard Data for English Language Arts Academic Indicator - Status & Change

District Data:
All students - status: low, 24.5 points below level 3; change:maintained, .04 points
English Learners - status: low, 45.1 points below level 3; change: maintained, 1.8 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - status: low, 40.2 points below level 3; change: low, declined -1.1 points
Students with Disabilities - status: very low,  98.5 points below level 3; change: maintained 3.1 points
Hispanic - status: low, 36.4 points below level 3; change:  maintained  -0.7

Johnson Jr. High Data:
All students - status: low, 13. 6 points below level 3; change: maintained, 6 points
English Learners - status: low, 36.4 points below level 3; change: increased, 8.1 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantage - status: low, 28.3 points below level 3; status: maintained, 4.5 points
Students with Disabilities - status: very low, 94.3 points below level 3; change: increased significantly, 23.1 points
Hispanic - status: low, 23.7 points below level 3; change: maintained, 4.5 points
White - status: high, 13.7 points above level 3; change: declined, -2.7 points

Arbuckle Elementary Data:
All students - status: low, 32.2 points below level 3;change: declined 5.8 points
English Learners - status: low, 50 points below level 3; change: declined: 2.9 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged: status: low, 48.6 points below level 3; change: declined, 6 points
Students with Disabilities - status: very low, 106.8 points below level 3; change: declined significantly 24.6 points
Hispanic - status: low, 45.3 points below level 3; change: declined 4 points

2015/16 College and Career Indicator (local indicator) Distance from level 3 ELA for grade 11 on  CAASPP
26.1 points below level 3 (status only)

2015/16 California Dashboard Data for Math Indicator - Status & Change

District Data:
All students - status: low 41.1 points below level 3; change: declined, 8.2 points

138 of 638



Page 29 of 99

English Learners - status: low, 56.5 points below level 3;change: declined 6 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged -  status: low, 54 points below level 3; change: declined -7.7 points
Students with disabilities - status: very low, 121.3 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 25.5 points
Hispanic - status: low, 49.7 points below level 3; change: declined 7.1 points
White - status: medium, 8.9 points below level 3; change: declined significantly 10.6 points

Johnson Jr. High Data:
All students - status: low, 56.4 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 12.2 points
English Learners - status: low, 77.3 points below level 3, change: declined, 6.8 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantages - status: low, 69.7 points below level 3; change: declined 10 points
Students with Disabilities - status: very low, 151 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 16.2 points
Hispanic - status: low, 66.5 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 12.6 points
White - status: medium, 23.2 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 18.6 points

Arbuckle Elementary Data:
All students - status: medium, 22.5 points below level 3; change: declined, 1.3 points
English Learners - status: low, 36.4 points below level 3; change: maintained, -.4 points
Socioeconomically Disadvantaged - status: low, 36.8 points below level 3; change: declined, 2.8 points
Students with Disabilities - status: low, 36.8 points below level 3; change: declined significantly, 29 points
Hispanic - status: low, 31.7 points below level 3; change: maintained, .3 points

2015/16 College and Career Indicator (local indicator) Distance from level 3 math for grade 11 on CAASPP
110 points below level 3 (status only)

2015/16 California Dashboard Data for English Learner Progress Indicator -
Status: medium, 73%;Change: declined, 4.4%

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
8): English Language Arts

1.
a. All Students: 24.5 points 
below level 3, maintained .4
b. English Learners: 45.1 points 
below level 3, maintained 1.8

c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 40.2 points 
below level 3, maintained 1.1

d. Students with Disabilities: 98.5 
points below level 3, maintained 
3.1

e. Hispanic: 36.4 points below 
level 3, maintained .7
f. White: 13.6 points above level 

1.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 to 17.5 points 
below
b. English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 points 
to 38.1 points below
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 33.2 
points below
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
10 points to 88.5 points below
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 to 29.4 points 
below

1.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 10.5 
points below
b.English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 points 
to 31.1 points below
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 26.2 
points below
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
10 points to 78.5 points below
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 22.4 
points below

1.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 3.5 
points below
b. English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 points 
to 24.1 points below
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 19.2 
points below
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
10 points to 68.5 points below
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 7 points to 15.4 
points below

139 of 638



Page 30 of 99

2. Academic Indicator (Grades 3-
8): Math

3. College/Career Indicator

4. English Learner Progress 
Indicator
which includes CELDT data and 
Reclassification rate data

5. Graduation Rate Indicator

3, maintained 3

2.
a. All Students: 41.1 points 
below level 3, declined 8.2 points
b. English Learners: 56.5 points 
below level 3, declined 6 points

c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: 54 points below 
level 3, declined 7.7 points

d. Students with Disabilities: 
121.3 points below level 3, 
declined 25.5 points

e. Hispanic: 49.7 points below 
level 3, declined 7.1 points
f. White: 8.9 points below level 3, 
declined 10.6 points

3. ELA - All Students (grade 11): 
26.1 points below level 3, 
declined 13.4 points

Math - All Students (grade 11): 
110.5 points below level 3, 
declined 25 points

Advanced Placement Passage 
Rate 48.6% (15/16)

EAP Passage rate:
ELA - 10.5% (15/16)
Math - 1.9% (15/16)

4. Status: 73% Change: Decline 
4.4%

Reclassification Rate: 10.2% 
(15/16)

5. Status: 100%

6. Maintain 'met' - Students have 

f. White: increase points above 
level 3 by 5 to 18.6 points above

2.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 36.1 points 
below level 3
b. English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 51.5 
points below level 3
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 49 points 
below level 3
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
5 to 116.3 points below level 3
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 44.7 points 
below level 3
f. White: decrease points below 
level 3 by 5 to 3.9 below level 3

3. ELA - All students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 to 19.1 
points below level 3
Math - All Students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 
105.5 points below level 3
Advanced Placement Passage 
Rate: increase to 52%

EAP Passage rate:
ELA- 15%
Math - 7%

4. Increase to 75%

Reclassification Rate: increase 
to 15%

5. Maintain > or = 95%

f. White: increase points above 
level 3 by 3 to 21.6 points above

2.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 31.1 points 
below level 3
b. English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 46.5 
points below level 3
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 44 points 
below level 3
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
5 to 111.3 points below level 3
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 39.7 points 
below level 3
f. White: decrease points below 
level 3 by 5 to 2 points above 
level 3

3. ELA - All students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 to 12.1 
points below level 3
Math - All Students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 
100.5 points below level 3
Advanced Placement Passage 
Rate: increase to 56%

EAP Passage rate:
ELA- 20%
Math - 12%

4. Data will be unavailable due to 
change in assessment to ELPAC
Reclassification Rate: increase 
to 20%

5. Maintain > or = 95%

6. Maintain 'met'

f. White: increase points above 
level 3 by 3 to 24.6 points above

2.
a. All Students: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 26.1 points 
below level 3
b. English Learners: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 41.5 
points below level 3
c. Socioeconomically 
Disadvantaged: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 39 points 
below level 3
d. Students with Disabilities: 
decrease points below level 3 by 
5 to 106.3 points below level 3
e. Hispanic: decrease points 
below level 3 by 5 to 34.7 points 
below level 3
f. White: increase points above 
level 3 by 5 to 7 points above 
level 3

3. ELA - All students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 7 to 5.1 
points below level 3
Math - All Students: decrease 
points below level 3 by 5 to 95.5 
points below level 3
Advanced Placement Passage 
Rate: increase to 60%

EAP Passage rate:
ELA- 25%
Math - 17%

4. Data will be unavailable due to 
change in assessment to ELPAC
Reclassification Rate: increase 
to 25%

5. Maintain>or = 95%

6. Maintain 'met'

140 of 638



Page 31 of 99

6. LCFF Priority 1: Basic 
(Availability of Textbooks, and 
Correctly Assigned Teachers)

7. LCFF Priority 2: 
Implementation of State 
Academic Standards

8. LCFF Priority 7: Access to a 
Broad Course of Study

9. LCFF priority 8: Outcomes in a 
Broad Course of Study

       

textbooks and teachers are 
appropriately credentialed

7. Maintain 'met' - school sites 
surveyed on level of 
implementation for all content 
areas

8. Maintain 'met' - All students, 
including unduplicated pupils and 
students with exceptional needs 
have access to core content 
classes, CTE classes and 
electives

9. CTE Pathway completers: 
89% (15/16)

6. Maintain 'met'

7. Maintain 'met'

8. Maintain 'met'

9. CTE Pathway completers: 
maintain at 85% or higher

7. Maintain 'met'

8. Maintain 'met'

9.  CTE Pathway completers: 
maintain at 85% or higher

7. Maintain 'met'

8. Maintain 'met'

9. CTE Pathway completers: 
maintain at 85% or higher

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES, JJH, GI Specific Grade spans: 

141 of 638



Page 32 of 99

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain .5 ELD teacher at GI, additional .5 ELD teacher 
at AES and full time ELD teacher at JJH       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $96,314  Amount      Amount      

       $96,314  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $96,314  
Amount       $56,319  Amount      Amount      

       $56,319  Source       Title I Source Title I Source

       $56,319  
Amount       $56,319  Amount      Amount      

       $56,319  Source       Title III Source Source

       $56,319  

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

142 of 638



Page 33 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: GI Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain additional para-educator at GI         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $17,238  Amount      Amount      

       $17,238  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source Supplemental and Concentration

       $17,238  

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: TK

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

143 of 638



Page 34 of 99

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain para-educator for TK classroom          

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $21,790 Amount      Amount      

       $21,790Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $21,790

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH Specific Grade spans: 6

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Hire additional 6th grade teacher to maintain smaller 
class sizes

teacher no longer needed because smaller student 
cohort

teacher no longer needed because smaller student 
cohort

144 of 638



Page 35 of 99

       

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $79,428 Amount $0     Amount $0     

       $79,428Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $79,428

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: K

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Hire 2 four hour/day para-educators for extended day 
kindergarten       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

145 of 638



Page 36 of 99

Amount       $33,445 Amount      Amount      

       $33,445Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $33,445

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain agriculture/wood fabrication program as a CTE 
course       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $98,615  Amount      Amount      

       $98,615  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $98,615  

146 of 638



Page 37 of 99

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain computer technology technician to provide 
training to teachers and to maintain equipment       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $34,245  Amount       Amount      

       $34,245  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $34,245  
Amount       $34,245  Amount      Amount      

       $34,245  Source       Base Source Base Source

       $34,245  

147 of 638



Page 38 of 99

Action    8
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Maintain TK-12 instructional coach         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $96,633  Amount       Amount      

        $96,633  Source       Title I Source Title I Source

        $96,633  

Action    9
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

148 of 638



Page 39 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR
For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Maintain teacher in order to have 5 class periods of 
support at the high school       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $91,337  Amount       Amount      

        $91,337  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $91,337  

Action    10
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH Specific Grade spans: 

149 of 638



Page 40 of 99

OR
For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        

Students to be Served
English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Maintain computer/technology teacher for middle school         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $ 98,100 Amount       Amount      

       $ 98,100 Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $ 98,100 

Action    11
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

150 of 638



Page 41 of 99

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH, PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain college/career counseling technician to work 
with both high school and middle school students       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $51,610  Amount      Amount      

       $51,610  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $51,610  

Action    12
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH Specific Grade spans: 

151 of 638



Page 42 of 99

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain teachers for four class periods to teach Get 
Focused, Stay Focused middle school curriculum at 8th 
grade and Life Skills class at 7th grade       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $49,829  Amount  Amount

        $49,829  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $49,829  

Action    13
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: TK-3, 5

ACTIONS/SERVICES

152 of 638



Page 43 of 99

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain TK-3 Class Size Reduction (CSR) & additional 
5th grade teacher for smaller class sizes        

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $218,602  Amount       Amount      

        $218,602  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $218,602  

Action    14
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Maintain teacher salary and health benefits increased in   

153 of 638



Page 44 of 99

14/15 to retain experienced and qualified staff       

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $406,152  Amount               Amount                 

        $406,152  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $406,152  

Action    15
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH, PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Balance class sizes throughout the day at middle school 
by having one full-time PE teacher there all day versus 
having two half-time people there at the same time. This 
change requires hiring a campus supervisor for locker 
room supervision for PE class(es) at high school.         

  

154 of 638



Page 45 of 99

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       Amount                      Amount               

Amount       $3,667     Amount Amount

       $3,667     Source       Base Source Base Source

       $3,667     

Action    16
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue administrative & staff training and feedback on 
effective instructional strategies for quality first instruction 
in the classroom and English Learner engagement 
strategies       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

155 of 638



Page 46 of 99

Amount       $22,779  Amount Amount

       $22,779  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $22,779  

Action    17
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain three additional staff development days added 
to certificated calendar       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $99,153 Amount               Amount               

        $99,153Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $99,153

156 of 638



Page 47 of 99

Action    18
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to use Edivate as an online resource tool for 
staff development and instructional feedback       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $ 13,495 Amount                Amount            

       $ 13,495Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $ 13,495

Action    19
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

157 of 638



Page 48 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue Professional Learning Communities during 
Wednesday staff development time by grade level and 
department with an emphasis on instructional planning 
and delivery of the state academic content standards, 
formative assessment, and data analysis. Provide time 
for vertical articulation between schools by content area. 
e.g. 7-12 math, ELA, science, social science, computers       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $201,852 Amount  Amount

       $201,852Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $201,852

Action    20
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

158 of 638



Page 49 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide training and coaching on state academic content 
standards in the following areas: NGSS, ELD/ELA, math, 
history/social science, CTE, Health Education, PE, visual 
and performing arts. Continue to train teachers on the 
digital library and utilization of the Interim Assessment 
Blocks (IAB). Continue technology integration training 
including the use of technology in regards to formative 
assessment. Pay for training of beginning teachers to 
clear their credentials through the Tri-County Induction 
Program       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $132,185 Amount Amount

       $132,185Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $132,185

Action    21

159 of 638



Page 50 of 99

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to hire regular day teachers to provide tutoring 
and instruction after school       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $27,212 Amount  Amount

        $27,212Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $27,212
Amount       $17,038       Amount Amount

       $17,038       Source       After School Education and Safety 
(ASES)

Source Source

       $17,038       

Action    22

160 of 638



Page 51 of 99

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities   

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide summer school instruction four hours/day for 15 
days for grades K-12       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $35,098       Amount Amount

       $35,098              $35,098       Budget 
Reference       Migrant Ed

Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Amount        $32,483  Amount  Amount

        $32,483  Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $32,483  

Action    23

161 of 638



Page 52 of 99

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH/PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide opportunity for high school students to attend 
Sacramento State Summer Academies, paying for 
registration and transportation.
Provide career/college exploration field trip opportunities 
for middle school students offered through nearby 
colleges
       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $25,030 Amount  Amount

        $25,030Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $25,030

Action    24

162 of 638



Page 53 of 99

For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue transportation for late bus route to Dunnigan, 
College City and Grimes to allow students to extend 
school day as needed.
Continue transportation for Grand Island After School 
Program.
       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $25,688   Amount Amount

       $25,688   Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $25,688   

Action    25
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

163 of 638



Page 54 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue partnership with Woodland community college 
for dual enrollment courses for students at high school 
and purchase necessary curriculum       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $3,500   Amount  Amount

        $3,500           $3,500   Budget 
Reference       Lottery Instructional Materials

Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    26
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

164 of 638



Page 55 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain and remain current with 1:1 technology devices 
for student access to technology while following a 20-
25% replacement rotation each year with Chromebooks. 
Purchase Chromebooks for 2 additional Kindergarten 
classrooms. Maintain teacher's classroom technology 
tools such as iPads, document cameras, Apple TVs       

Maintain and remain current with 1:1 technology devices 
for student access to technology while following a 20-
25% replacement rotation each year with Chromebooks.  
Maintain teacher's classroom technology tools such as 
iPads, document cameras, Apple TVs

 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $180,000 Amount  $170,000 Amount

        $180,000Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Supplemental and Concentration Source

        $180,000

Action    27
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES/GI Specific Grade spans: 

165 of 638



Page 56 of 99

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue utilizing Illuminate as student assessment data 
information system, grading system and report cards for 
grades TK-5       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $8,173 Amount  Amount

        $8,173Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $8,173

Action    28
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

166 of 638



Page 57 of 99

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue licensing of Northwest Evaluation Association 
(NWEA) and Measures of Academic Progress (MAP) for 
assessment data usage       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $22,065 Amount  Amount

        $22,065Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $22,065

Action    29
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

167 of 638



Page 58 of 99

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Pay Advanced Placement (AP) exam fees for students 
taking AP classes       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount         $10,174 Amount  Amount

         $10,174Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

         $10,174

Action    30
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

168 of 638



Page 59 of 99

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Purchase curriculum materials for two brand-new 
classrooms for extended day Kindergarten
Purchase curriculum for brand-new sixth grade 
classroom
Purchase sixth grade math curriculum aligned to K-5 
program
Continue to purchase computer class curriculum at 
middle school
Purchase Get Focused, Stay Focused and Life Skills 
Curriculum for middle school
       

Purchase State Academic Standard aligned curriculum 
for science
Continue to purchase computer class curriculum at 
middle school
Continue to purchase Get Focused, Stay Focused and 
Life Skills curriculum for middle school

Purchase State Academic Standard aligned curriculum 
for social science
Continue to purchase computer class curriculum at 
middle school
Continue to purchase Get Focused, Stay Focused and 
Life Skills curriculum for middle school

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $65,550 Amount  Amount

        $65,550        $65,550Budget 
Reference       Instructional Lottery

Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

Action    31
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

169 of 638



Page 60 of 99

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue software subscriptions and licensing for ST 
Math, Compass Learning, iXL math, Edmentum for 
intervention and credit recovery where applicable       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $15,690 Amount   Amount

        $15,690Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $15,690

Action    32
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

170 of 638



Page 61 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue license for curriculum for special education 
students       

 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount        $5.100 Amount  Amount

        $5.100Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $5.100

Action    33
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

171 of 638



Page 62 of 99

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to increase site library collections and replace 
obsolete or damaged materials as needed.        

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $5,000        Amount Amount

       $5,000        Source       Lottery Source Lottery Source

       $5,000        

Action    34
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide breakfast in the classroom for all Transitional 

172 of 638



Page 63 of 99

Kindergarten and Kindergarten students. Provide free 
meals to students qualifying for reduced priced meals.        

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

Amount       $28,448 Amount                Amount                     

       $28,448Source       Base Source Base Source

       $28,448

173 of 638



Page 64 of 99

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 2 Pierce Joint Unified School District students will feel a sense of connectedness academically, socially, emotionally, and physically in their schools.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need Suspension Rate District-wide:

Students with Disabilities: Very High status 9.2%, Declined change -.7%

Suspension Rate at high school:
English Learners: Very High status 13%, Increased Significantly change +3.5%
White: High status 8.4%, Increased Significantly change +3.3%

Chronic Absenteeism Rate: 6%

Healthy Kids Survey: 21% of 5th graders 'feel safe at school' (15/16 data)

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. LCFF Priority 1: Basic 
(Adequate Facilities)
2. LCFF Priority 5: Chronic 
Absenteeism
3. State Suspension Rate 
Indicator

4. Attendance Rate
5. Middle-school dropout rate

1. 'Exemplar' facility rating based 
on FIT data for all school sites.
2. 6% Chronic absenteeism rate

3. 4.2% status, 1.9% decline - 
state  Suspension Rate Indicator

4. 97% attendance rate
5. 0% middle-school dropout rate

1. Maintain 'Exemplar' rating

2. Decrease Chronic 
absenteeism rate to 5%
3. Decrease Suspension rate to 
4%

4. Maintain 97% attendance rate
5. Maintain 0% middle school 

1. Maintain 'Exemplar' rating

2, Maintain Chronic absenteeism 
rate at 5% or less
3. Decrease Suspension rate by 
.3% to 3.7%

4. Maintain 97% attendance rate
5. Maintain 0% middle school 
dropout

1. Maintain 'Exemplar' rating

2. Maintain Chronic absenteeism 
rate at 5% or less
3. Decrease Suspension rate by 
.3% to 3.4%

4. Maintain 97% attendance rate
5. Maintain 0% middle school 

174 of 638



Page 65 of 99

6. LCFF Priority 6: School 
Climate
Healthy Kids Survey Data

7. District Expulsion Rate
8. High School Dropout Rate

       

6.
* 21% of 5th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school
*81% of 7th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school
*62% of 9th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel they are part of the school
*48% of 11th graders on the 
HKS agree or strongly agree that 
they feel they are part of the 
school
*81% of 5th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school
*82% of 7th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school
*77% of 9th graders on the HKS 
agree or strongly agree that they 
feel safe at school
*74% of 11th graders on the 
HKS agree or strongly agree that 
they feel safe at school

7. 0% Expulsion rate
8. .01% High School Dropout 
Rate

dropout
6.
*Increase to 30% 5th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 85% 7th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 67% 9th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 53% 11th graders 
on the HKS agree or strongly 
agree that they feel they are part 
of the school
*Increase to 84% 5th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 85% 7th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 79% 9th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 79% 11th graders 
on the HKS agree or strongly 
agree that they feel safe at 
school

7. Maintain Expulsion rate at 2% 
or less
8. Maintain High School Dropout 
Rate at
2% or less

6. Not Applicable

7. Maintain at 2% or less
8. Maintain High School Dropout 
Rate at
2% or less

dropout
6.
* Increase to 35% 5th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 87% 7th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 70% 9th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel they are part of the 
school
*Increase to 58% 11th graders 
on the HKS agree or strongly 
agree that they feel they are part 
of the school
*Increase to 86% 5th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 87% 7th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 81% 9th graders on 
the HKS agree or strongly agree 
that they feel safe at school
*Increase to 81% 11th graders 
on the HKS agree or strongly 
agree that they feel safe at 
school
7. Maintain  Expulsion rate at 2% 
or less
8. Maintain High School Dropout 
Rate at
2% or less

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities   

175 of 638



Page 66 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain prevention/intervention counselor. Hire an 
additional prevention/intervention counselor focusing on 
attendance, alternatives to suspensions and freshmen 
with failing grades.        

Maintain two prevention/intervention counselors  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $111,279 Amount $ 113,505 Amount

       $111,279Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Supplemental Source

       $111,279
Amount       $107,858 Amount $110,015 Amount

       $107,858Source       Other Source Other Source

       $107,858Budget 
Reference       Learning Communities for Schools Grant

Budget 
Reference Learning Communities for Schools Grant

Budget 
Reference

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

176 of 638



Page 67 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain campus supervisor position for students waiting 
for late bus route       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $1,214 Amount $ Amount

       $1,214 Source       After School Education and Safety 
(ASES)

Source Source

       $1,214 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

177 of 638



Page 68 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain full-time elementary vice-principal for student 
support       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $146,693 Amount  Amount

        $146,693Source       Base Source Source

        $146,693

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

178 of 638



Page 69 of 99

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain ROP/CTE teachers         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $122,852 Amount  Amount

        $122,852Source       Base Source Source

        $122,852

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: AES Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

179 of 638



Page 70 of 99

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain one full-time Physical Education Teacher to 
ensure PE minutes       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $71,498 Amount Amount

        $71,498Source       Base Source Source

        $71,498

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

180 of 638



Page 71 of 99

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain part-time nurse and part-time health aide         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $39,272  Amount Amount

       $39,272  Source       Base Source Source

       $39,272  

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

181 of 638



Page 72 of 99

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain music position at PHS         

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 71,499 Amount $ Amount

       $ 71,499Source       Base Source Source

       $ 71,499

Action    8
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain facility services at school sites which include an 
additional 1.5 hours to overall classified custodial staff 
time in the 15/16 school year       

  

182 of 638



Page 73 of 99

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $6,669  Amount  Amount

        $6,669  Source       Base Source Source

        $6,669  

Action    9
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools:  Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain extra-curricular funding and funding for school 
clubs and activities for academic enrichment       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $12,000 Amount Amount

       $12,000

183 of 638



Page 74 of 99

Source       Base Source Source

       $12,000

Action    10
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to purchase musical instruments for new music 
classes       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $20,000 Amount Amount

       $20,000Source       Other Source Source

       $20,000Budget 
Reference       Donation 

Budget 
Reference

Budget 
Reference

184 of 638



Page 75 of 99

Action    11
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Maintain video camera systems on buses and at school 
sites. Purchase new cameras as needed         

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $4,000    Amount  Amount

        $4,000    Source       Base Source Source

        $4,000    

185 of 638



Page 76 of 99

Goals, Actions, & Services
Strategic Planning Details and Accountability

Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate the table as needed.
----------

New
  

Modified
  

Unchanged

----------

Goal 3 Pierce Joint Unified School District will engage families and members of the greater school community as educational partners.       

----------
State and/or Local Priorities Addressed by this goal: STATE       1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

COE       9 10
LOCAL   

----------
Identified Need  Engaging parents of English Learners and Low Income parents is a challenge for the district. 

----------
EXPECTED ANNUAL MEASURABLE OUTCOMES

Metrics/Indicators Baseline 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20

1. LCFF Priority 3: Parent 
Engagement       

1a. Offer Parent Institute for 
Quality Education (PIQE) 
workshops or 4 other parent 
trainings yearly for parents of all 
students including unduplicated 
and those with exceptional 
needs
1b. Maintain District English 
Learner Advisory Committee 
(DELAC) parent meeting 
attendance at 15 or more 
parents per meeting

1a. PIQE workshops or 4 other 
parent trainings offered

1b. 15 parents or more attended 
DELAC meeting

1a. PIQE workshops or 4 other 
parent trainings offered

1b.  15 parents or more attended 
DELAC meeting

1a. PIQE workshops or 4 other 
parent trainings offered

1b. 15 parents or more attended 
DELAC meeting

PLANNED ACTIONS / SERVICES
Complete a copy of the following table for each of the LEA’s Actions/Services. Duplicate the table, including Budgeted Expenditures, as needed.

Action    1
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

186 of 638



Page 77 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue Edu-link contract to allow phone and email 
messaging to families. Continue with Mobile App for 
communication       

   

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $ 3,500 Amount $ Amount

       $ 3,500Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

       $ 3,500
Amount       $4,200 Amount Amount

       $4,200Source       Base Source Source

       $4,200

Action    2
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

187 of 638



Page 78 of 99

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH Specific Grade spans: 8

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

 Meet with parents of 8th graders to work on student's 
high school plan       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $2,771 Amount Amount

       $2,771Source       Base Source Source

       $2,771
Amount       $ Amount $ Amount

       $        $ 

Action    3
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

188 of 638



Page 79 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

School sites will seek parent input through surveys 
including the Healthy Kids Survey       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $500 Amount Amount

        $500Source       Base Source Source

        $500

Action    4
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: JJH/PHS Specific Grade spans: 

OR

189 of 638



Page 80 of 99

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to provide parents with information on how to 
access the parent portal to monitor their child's grades 
and attendance       

 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $600 Amount  Amount

        $600Source       Base Source Source

        $600

Action    5
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: PHS Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

190 of 638



Page 81 of 99

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Provide high school parents with updated timelines each 
year of important dates and deadlines in relation to 
college and career entry       

 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       600 Amount  Amount

       600Source       Base Source Source

       600

Action    6
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools:  Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

191 of 638



Page 82 of 99

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue holding at least two District English Learner 
Advisory Committe (DELAC) meetings and two District 
Advisory Committee (DAC) meetings per year       

 

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount       $250.00 Amount  Amount

       $250.00Source       Base Source Source

       $250.00

Action    7
For Actions/Services not included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:         

Students to be Served
All        Students with Disabilities  Migrant

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

OR

For Actions/Services included as contributing to meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:        
Students to be Served

English Learners        Foster Youth Low Income

Scope of Services
LEA-wide        Schoolwide                  OR Limited to Unduplicated Student Group(s)

Location(s)
All Schools        Specific Schools: Specific Grade spans: 

ACTIONS/SERVICES

192 of 638



Page 83 of 99

   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20

New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged New Modified        Unchanged

Continue to offer Parent Institute for Quality Education 
(PIQE) workshops and/or other parent workshops       

  

BUDGETED EXPENDITURES
   2017-18           2018-19    2019-20
Amount        $6,202 Amount  Amount

        $6,202Source       Supplemental and Concentration Source Source

        $6,202

193 of 638



Page 84 of 99

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Pupils
LCAP Year 2017–18 2018–19 2019–20

----------
Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds: $ 2,275,350 Percentage to Increase or Improve Services:  20.12%
----------
Describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are increased or improved by at least the percentage identified above, either qualitatively or quantitatively, 
as compared to services provided for all students in the LCAP year. 

Identify each action/service being funded and provided on a schoolwide or LEA-wide basis. Include the required descriptions supporting each schoolwide or LEA-
wide use of funds (see instructions).
----------
Pierce Joint Unified School District has planned expenditures on a district-wide and school-wide basis due to the fact that our unduplicated student count is 
_70.90__%. Because our English Learners and Low Income Students generate these dollars, those students will be targeted specifically for the planned services, 
but any student, regardless of whether or not they are an English Learner or Low Income Student, will be eligible for the service if the service is needed to improve 
academic and/or social and emotional needs that lead to the district meeting its goals. Services in the plan include: teacher training, academic intervention, 
technology-driven intervention resources, social-emotional and behavioral support, English Learner support, college and career readiness, parent involvement, 
class size reduction, extended learning time, assessment systems, and after school enrichment activities including transportation.

Pierce Joint Unified is expending the majority of its Supplemental and Concentrated funds district and school-wide as stated above with targeted students as a 
priority.

The following added services are planned for 2017/18:

• Hire additional 6th grade teacher
• Hire two new para-educators to support extended-day Kindergarten
• Hire campus supervisors for locker room supervision for PE to allow a PE teacher at the middle school all day to ensure balanced class sizes in all courses
• Purchase additional Chromebooks to accommodate the new kindergarten classrooms
• Hire a consultant to deliver staff development for Next Generation Science Standards
• Provide breakfast in the classroom for all Transitional Kindergartners and Kindergartners at Arbuckle Elementary

The following services that were added in previous years and are ongoing:

• Hire district-wide instructional coach (16/17)
• Create high school media center with online research resources (16/17)
• Add computer teacher to the middle school (16/17)
• Purchase curriculum to support Special Education classes (16/17)

194 of 638



Page 85 of 99

• Add ELD teacher specifically for middle school for designated support (16/17)
• Offer college/career field trip opportunities to middle school students (16/17)
• Equip buses with video camera systems (16/17)
• Hire an additional music teacher (16/17)
• Hire a part-time nurse and part-time health clerk (16/17)
• One additional staff development day added for teachers to improve their content knowledge and instructional delivery (15-16)
• School sites reviewed and determined ELA curriculum adoption materials (15-16)
• Hired tutor to support students after school at the high school (15-16)
• Purchase additional library books at the elementary and middle schools to give students more variety and serve the reading level of all students (15-16)
• Strategic planning held for administrators to set the professional development path for teachers, including EL strategies (15-16)
• Hired .5 FTE to teach ELD at Arbuckle Elementary to have a total of 1.5 ELD teachers (15-16)
• Edivate online teacher resource tool was implemented to assist teachers with continual improvement (15-16)
• AP exam costs began being paid by the district so that all students in an AP class will take the AP exam (15-16)
• 3 week summer school program for students not meeting proficiency (15-16)
• Purchased ST math subscriptions for grades TK-6 and 7 & 8 grade intervention licenses to build math concept knowledge (15-16)
• Purchased NWEA and MAP assessments to be able to gauge student progress throughout the school year (15-16)
• Hired college/career technician to support counselor; work with students and parents on goal setting and steps for college/career preparation beginning in          

middle school (15-16)
• Hired full-time elementary vice principal for student support (15-16)
• Hired additional PE teacher for smaller class sizes, and this increase created grade level collaboration time for planning because entire grade levels will have 

PE at the same time (15-16)
• Began College and Career Club program in grades 7 and 8. (15-16)
• Added band to 9th graders schedule as a course offering during 7th period (15-16)
• Trained parents on how to access new abi.net portal to allow them to see students’ attendance and grades (15-16)
• Communicated with parents regarding high school requirements for students and college and career options for students (15-16)
• Created district App for Smart Phones as a means for parent communication (15-16)
• Offered Parent Institute for Quality Education (PIQE) workshops for parents on information regarding the schooling system (15-16)
• Teacher and administrative training on EL strategies, instructional strategies, assessment strategies, Common Core, STEM, NGSS and technology both on 

and off-site (14-15)
• Math Common Core materials being utilized (14-15)
• Utilization of Illuminate as assessment data information system (14-15)
• Para-educator time at Grand Island to support combination classrooms and high EL student population (14-15)
• .5 FTE for ELD teacher at Grand Island (14-15)
• Agriculture, wood fabrication class as a CTE course (14-15)
• Teachers hired for K-3 CSR and 5th grade teacher to keep class sizes lower (14-15)
• Purchase Chromebooks so that we are at 1:1 with devices in grades 2-12 (14-15)
• Technology employee maintains devices and provides teachers with training in the area of technology (14-15)
• Transportation for late bus route to extend school day for intervention participation (14-15)
• Two staff development days added to teacher calendar through negotiations (14-15)
• Salary and health benefits increase to retain trained, quality staff (14-15)

195 of 638



Page 86 of 99

• Teacher induction paid by the district for beginning teachers (14-15)
• Full-time prevention/intervention counselor (14-15)
• Sacramento State Summer Academy tuition paid and transportation provided for 9-11 graders (14-15)
• Teachers provide intervention and instruction after school (14-15)
• School clubs and activities for academic enrichment (14-15)
• Campus supervisor position for students waiting to take the late bus (14-15)
• Para-professional for TK classroom (14-15)
• ROP/CTE courses (14-15)
• Parent college visit to Sacramento State (14-15)
• Edu-link messaging contract for parent communication (14-15)
• EL academic support periods at high school level (14-15)
• Reading Intervention Teacher at elementary school (14-15)
• EL support class provided by para-educator at kindergarten (14-15)

-------
-------

196 of 638



Revised Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template 
Instructions

Addendum
The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template documents and 
communicates local educational agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support student outcomes and 
overall performance. For school districts and county offices of education, the LCAP is a three-year plan which 
is reviewed and updated in the second and third years of the plan.  Charter schools may complete the LCAP to 
align with the term of the charter school’s budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s 
authorizer. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

For school districts, the LCAP must describe, for the school district and each school within the district, goals 
and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each student group identified by the Local 
Control Funding Formula (LCFF) (ethnic, socioeconomically disadvantaged, English learners, foster youth, 
pupils with disabilities, and homeless youth), for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

For county offices of education, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of education-operated school 
and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each LCFF student group 
funded through the county office of education (students attending juvenile court schools, on probation or 
parole, or expelled under certain conditions) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. 
School districts and county offices of education may additionally coordinate and describe in their LCAPs 
services funded by a school district that are provided to students attending county-operated schools and 
programs, including special education programs. 

If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, the county board of 
education and the governing board of the school district may adopt and file for review and approval a single 
LCAP consistent with the requirements in Education Code (EC) sections 52060, 52062, 52066, 52068, and 
52070.  The LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or county superintendent of 
schools) all budgeted and actual expenditures are aligned. 

Charter schools must describe goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all students and each 
LCFF subgroup of students including students with disabilities and homeless youth, for each of the state 
priorities that apply for the grade levels served or the nature of the program operated by the charter school, 
and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state priorities 
in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, 
including modifications to reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the 
Education Code. Changes in LCAP goals and actions/services for charter schools that result from the annual 
update process do not necessarily constitute a material revision to the school’s charter petition.

197 of 638



For questions related to specific sections of the template, please see instructions below:

Instructions: Linked Table of Contents

Plan Summary
Annual Update
Stakeholder Engagement
Goals, Actions, and Services
Planned Actions/Services
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students

For additional questions or technical assistance related to completion of the LCAP template, please contact the 
local county office of education, or the CDE’s Local Agency Systems Support Office at: 916-319-0809 or by 
email at: lcff@cde.ca.gov.

Plan Summary
The LCAP is intended to reflect an LEA’s annual goals, actions, services and expenditures within a fixed three-
year planning cycle. LEAs must include a plan summary for the LCAP each year. 
When developing the LCAP, mark the appropriate LCAP year, and address the prompts provided in these 
sections.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year and replace the 
previous summary information with information relevant to the current year LCAP.
In this section, briefly address the prompts provided. These prompts are not limits.  LEAs may include 
information regarding local program(s), community demographics, and the overall vision of the LEA.  LEAs 
may also attach documents (e.g., the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics data reports) if desired and/or include charts 
illustrating goals, planned outcomes, actual outcomes, or related planned and actual expenditures.
An LEA may use an alternative format for the plan summary as long as it includes the information specified in 
each prompt and the budget summary table.
The reference to LCFF Evaluation Rubrics means the evaluation rubrics adopted by the State Board of 
Education under EC Section 52064.5.  

Budget Summary
The LEA must complete the LCAP Budget Summary table as follows:

 Total LEA General Fund Budget Expenditures for the LCAP Year: This amount is the LEA’s 
total budgeted General Fund expenditures for the LCAP year. The LCAP year means the fiscal year 
for which an LCAP is adopted or updated by July 1. The General Fund is the main operating fund of 
the LEA and accounts for all activities not accounted for in another fund. All activities are reported in 
the General Fund unless there is a compelling reason to account for an activity in another fund. For 
further information please refer to the California School Accounting Manual 
(http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/). (Note: For some charter schools that follow governmental fund 
accounting, this amount is the total budgeted expenditures in the Charter Schools Special Revenue 
Fund. For charter schools that follow the not-for-profit accounting model, this amount is total 
budgeted expenses, such as those budgeted in the Charter Schools Enterprise Fund.)

 Total Funds Budgeted for Planned Actions/Services to Meet the Goals in the LCAP for the 
LCAP Year: This amount is the total of the budgeted expenditures associated with the 
actions/services included for the LCAP year from all sources of funds, as reflected in the LCAP.  To 
the extent actions/services and/or expenditures are listed in the LCAP under more than one goal, 
the expenditures should be counted only once.

 Description of any use(s) of the General Fund Budget Expenditures specified above for the 
LCAP year not included in the LCAP: Briefly describe expenditures included in total General 
Fund Expenditures that are not included in the total funds budgeted for planned actions/services for 

198 of 638

http://www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/sa/


the LCAP year. (Note: The total funds budgeted for planned actions/services may include funds 
other than general fund expenditures.)

 Total Projected LCFF Revenues for LCAP Year: This amount is the total amount of LCFF funding 
the LEA estimates it will receive pursuant to EC sections 42238.02 (for school districts and charter 
schools) and 2574 (for county offices of education), as implemented by EC sections 42238.03 and 
2575 for the LCAP year respectively.  

Annual Update
The planned goals, expected outcomes, actions/services, and budgeted expenditures must be copied verbatim 
from the previous year’s* approved LCAP. Minor typographical errors may be corrected.  

* For example, for LCAP year 2017/18 of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 LCAP, review the goals in the 2016/17 
LCAP. Moving forward, review the goals from the most recent LCAP year. For example, LCAP year 
2020/21 will review goals from the 2019/20 LCAP year, which is the last year of the 2017/18 – 2019/20 
LCAP. 
Annual Measurable Outcomes

For each goal in the prior year, identify and review the actual measurable outcomes as compared to 
the expected annual measurable outcomes identified in the prior year for the goal. 

Actions/Services
Identify the planned Actions/Services and the budgeted expenditures to implement these actions 
toward achieving the described goal. Identify the actual actions/services implemented to meet the 
described goal and the estimated actual annual expenditures to implement the actions/services. As 
applicable, identify any changes to the students or student groups served, or to the planned location of 
the actions/services provided.

Analysis
Using actual annual measurable outcome data, including data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, 
analyze whether the planned actions/services were effective in achieving the goal. Respond to the 
prompts as instructed.

 Describe the overall implementation of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal. 
Include a discussion of relevant challenges and successes experienced with the implementation 
process. 

 Describe the overall effectiveness of the actions/services to achieve the articulated goal as 
measured by the LEA.

 Explain material differences between Budgeted Expenditures and Estimated Actual Expenditures. 
Minor variances in expenditures or a dollar-for-dollar accounting is not required.

 Describe any changes made to this goal, expected outcomes, metrics, or actions and services to 
achieve this goal as a result of this analysis and analysis of the data provided in the LCFF 
Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.  Identify where those changes can be found in the LCAP.

Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, students, and other stakeholders, including those representing the student 
groups identified by LCFF, is critical to the development of the LCAP and the budget process. Education Code 
identifies the minimum consultation requirements for school districts and county offices of education as 
consulting with teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, local bargaining units of the school 
district, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. Education Code requires charter schools to consult with 
teachers, principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the LCAP. In 
addition, Education Code Section 48985 specifies the requirements for the translation of notices, reports, 
statements, or records sent to a parent or guardian.

199 of 638



The LCAP should be shared with, and LEAs should request input from, school site-level advisory groups, as 
applicable (e.g., school site councils, English Learner Advisory Councils, student advisory groups, etc.), to 
facilitate alignment between school-site and district-level goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or 
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet specific goals.  

Instructions: The stakeholder engagement process is an ongoing, annual process. The requirements for 
this section are the same for each year of a three-year LCAP. When developing the LCAP, mark the 
appropriate LCAP year, and describe the stakeholder engagement process used to develop the LCAP 
and Annual Update.  When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, mark the appropriate LCAP year 
and replace the previous stakeholder narrative(s) and describe the stakeholder engagement process 
used to develop the current year LCAP and Annual Update.

School districts and county offices of education: Describe the process used to consult with the 
Parent Advisory Committee, the English Learner Parent Advisory Committee, parents, students, 
school personnel, the LEA’s local bargaining units, and the community to inform the development 
of the LCAP and the annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year.
Charter schools: Describe the process used to consult with teachers, principals, administrators, 
other school personnel, parents, and students to inform the development of the LCAP and the 
annual review and analysis for the indicated LCAP year. 

Describe how the consultation process impacted the development of the LCAP and annual update for the 
indicated LCAP year, including the goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Goals, Actions, and Services
LEAs must include a description of the annual goals, for all students and each LCFF identified group of 
students, to be achieved for each state priority as applicable to type of LEA. An LEA may also include 
additional local priorities. This section shall also include a description of the specific planned actions an LEA 
will take to meet the identified goals, and a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific 
actions.

School districts and county offices of education: The LCAP is a three-year plan, which is reviewed 
and updated annually, as required.  
Charter schools: The number of years addressed in the LCAP may align with the term of the charter 
schools budget, typically one year, which is submitted to the school’s authorizer. If year 2 and/or year 3 
is not applicable, charter schools must specify as such.  

New, Modified, Unchanged
As part of the LCAP development process, which includes the annual update and stakeholder 
engagement, indicate if the goal, identified need, related state and/or local priorities, and/or expected 
annual measurable outcomes for the current LCAP year or future LCAP years are modified or 
unchanged from the previous year’s LCAP; or, specify if the goal is new.

Goal
State the goal. LEAs may number the goals using the “Goal #” box for ease of reference. A goal is a 
broad statement that describes the desired result to which all actions/services are directed. A goal 
answers the question: What is the LEA seeking to achieve?  

Related State and/or Local Priorities
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the 
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, 
as applicable to the type of LEA, and any additional local priorities; however, one goal may address 
multiple priorities. (Link to State Priorities)

Identified Need

200 of 638



Describe the needs that led to establishing the goal.  The identified needs may be based on 
quantitative or qualitative information, including, but not limited to, results of the annual update process 
or performance data from the LCFF Evaluation Rubrics, as applicable.

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
For each LCAP year, identify the metric(s) or indicator(s) that the LEA will use to track progress toward 
the expected outcomes. LEAs may identify metrics for specific student groups. Include in the baseline 
column the most recent data associated with this metric or indicator available at the time of adoption of 
the LCAP for the first year of the three-year plan. The most recent data associated with a metric or 
indicator includes data as reported in the annual update of the LCAP year immediately preceding the 
three-year plan, as applicable. The baseline data shall remain unchanged throughout the three-year 
LCAP. In the subsequent year columns, identify the progress to be made in each year of the three-year 
cycle of the LCAP.  Consider how expected outcomes in any given year are related to the expected 
outcomes for subsequent years.
The metrics may be quantitative or qualitative, but at minimum an LEA must use the applicable required 
metrics for the related state priorities, in each LCAP year as applicable to the type of LEA.  For the 
student engagement priority metrics, as applicable, LEAs must calculate the rates as described in the 
LCAP Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Planned Actions/Services

For each action/service, the LEA must complete either the section “For Actions/Services not 
contributing to meeting Increased or Improved Services Requirement” or the section “For 
Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement.”  The LEA 
shall not complete both sections for a single action.

For Actions/Services Not Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement
Students to be Served
The “Students to be Served” box is to be completed for all actions/services except for those which are 
included by the LEA as contributing to meeting the requirement to increase or improve services for 
unduplicated students. Indicate in this box which students will benefit from the actions/services by 
checking “All”, “Students with Disabilities”, or “Specific Student Group(s)”. If “Specific Student Group(s)” 
is checked, identify the specific student group(s) as appropriate.
Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

For Actions/Services Contributing to Meeting the Increased or Improved Services Requirement:
Students to be Served
For any action/service contributing to the LEA’s overall demonstration that it has increased or improved 
services for unduplicated students above what is provided to all students (see Demonstration of 
Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students section, below), the LEA must identify the 
unduplicated student group(s) being served.  

Scope of Service

201 of 638



For each action/service contributing to meeting the increased or improved services requirement, 
identify scope of service by indicating “LEA-wide”, “Schoolwide”, or “Limited to Unduplicated 
Student Group(s)”. The LEA must select one of the following three options:

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
the LEA, place a check mark next to “LEA-wide.”

 If the action/service is being funded and provided to upgrade the entire educational program of 
a particular school or schools, place a check mark next to “schoolwide”. 

 If the action/service being funded and provided is limited to the unduplicated students identified 
in “Students to be Served”, place a check mark next to “Limited to Student Groups”. 

For charter schools and single-school school districts, “LEA-wide” and “Schoolwide” may be 
synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. For charter schools operating multiple 
schools (determined by a unique CDS code) under a single charter, use “LEA-wide” to refer to all 
schools under the charter and use “Schoolwide” to refer to a single school authorized within the 
same charter petition. Charter schools operating a single school may use “LEA-wide” or 
“Schoolwide” provided these terms are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Location(s)
Identify the location where the action/services will be provided. If the services are provided to all 
schools within the LEA, the LEA must indicate “All Schools”. If the services are provided to specific 
schools within the LEA or specific grade spans only, the LEA must mark “Specific Schools” or “Specific 
Grade Spans”. Identify the individual school or a subset of schools or grade spans (e.g., all high 
schools or grades K-5), as appropriate.

Charter schools operating more than one site, authorized within the same charter petition, may 
choose to distinguish between sites by selecting “Specific Schools” and identify the site(s) where 
the actions/services will be provided. For charter schools operating only one site, “All Schools” and 
“Specific Schools” may be synonymous and, therefore, either would be appropriate. Charter 
schools may use either term provided they are used in a consistent manner through the LCAP.

Actions/Services
For each LCAP year, identify the actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described 
goal.  Actions and services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal may be grouped 
together.  LEAs may number the action/service using the “Action #” box for ease of reference.

New/Modified/Unchanged: 
 Check “New” if the action/service is being added in any of the three years of the LCAP to 

meet the articulated goal. 

 Check “Modified” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.

 Check “Unchanged” if the action/service was included to meet an articulated goal and has 
not been changed or modified in any way from the prior year description.  

o If a planned action/service is anticipated to remain unchanged for the duration of the 
plan, an LEA may check “Unchanged” and leave the subsequent year columns 
blank rather than having to copy/paste the action/service into the subsequent year 
columns. Budgeted expenditures may be treated in the same way as applicable.

Note: The goal from the prior year may or may not be included in the current three-year LCAP. For 
example, when developing year 1 of the LCAP, the goals articulated in year 3 of the preceding 
three-year LCAP will be from the prior year.

Charter schools may complete the LCAP to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is 
submitted to the school’s authorizer. Accordingly, a charter school submitting a one-year budget to its 
authorizer may choose not to complete the year 2 and year 3 portions of the Goals, Actions, and 

202 of 638



Services section of the template.  If year 2 and/or year 3 is not applicable, charter schools must specify 
as such.
Budgeted Expenditures
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement 
these actions, including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must 
reference all fund sources for each proposed expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the 
California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061, 52067, and 
47606.5. 
Expenditures that are included more than once in an LCAP must be indicated as a duplicated 
expenditure and include a reference to the goal and action/service where the expenditure first appears 
in the LCAP.
If a county superintendent of schools has jurisdiction over a single school district, and chooses to 
complete a single LCAP, the LCAP must clearly articulate to which entity’s budget (school district or 
county superintendent of schools) all budgeted expenditures are aligned.

Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students
This section must be completed for each LCAP year. When developing the LCAP in year 2 or year 3, copy the 
Demonstration of Increased or Improved Services for Unduplicated Students table and mark the appropriate 
LCAP year. Using the copy of the table, complete the table as required for the current year LCAP. Retain all 
prior year tables for this section for each of the three years within the LCAP.

Estimated Supplemental and Concentration Grant Funds
Identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration 
of low income, foster youth, and English learner students as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(5). 
Percentage to Increase or Improve Services
Identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as 
compared to the services provided to all students in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 
15496(a)(7).

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, describe how services provided for unduplicated pupils are 
increased or improved by at least the percentage calculated as compared to services provided for all students 
in the LCAP year.  To improve services means to grow services in quality and to increase services means to 
grow services in quantity.  This description must address how the action(s)/service(s) limited for one or more 
unduplicated student group(s), and any schoolwide or districtwide action(s)/service(s) supported by the 
appropriate description, taken together, result in the required proportional increase or improvement in services 
for unduplicated pupils.

If the overall increased or improved services include any actions/services being funded and provided on a 
schoolwide or districtwide basis, identify each action/service and include the required descriptions supporting 
each action/service as follows. 

For those services being provided on an LEA-wide basis:

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of 55% or more, and for charter schools and 
county offices of education: Describe how these services are principally directed to and effective in 
meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priorities.

 For school districts with an unduplicated pupil percentage of less than 55%: Describe how these services 
are principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities. Also describe how the services are the most effective use of the funds to meet these 
goals for its unduplicated pupils. Provide the basis for this determination, including any alternatives 
considered, supporting research, experience or educational theory.

203 of 638



For school districts only, identify in the description those services being funded and provided on a schoolwide 
basis, and include the required description supporting the use of the funds on a schoolwide basis:

 For schools with 40% or more enrollment of unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are 
principally directed to and effective in meeting its goals for its unduplicated pupils in the state and any 
local priorities.

 For school districts expending funds on a schoolwide basis at a school with less than 40% enrollment of 
unduplicated pupils: Describe how these services are principally directed to and how the services are 
the most effective use of the funds to meet its goals for English learners, low income students and 
foster youth, in the state and any local priorities.

State Priorities
Priority 1: Basic Services addresses the degree to which:

A. Teachers in the LEA are appropriately assigned and fully credentialed in the subject area and for the 
pupils they are teaching;

B. Pupils in the school district have sufficient access to the standards-aligned instructional materials; and
C. School facilities are maintained in good repair.

Priority 2: Implementation of State Standards addresses:
A. The implementation of state board adopted academic content and performance standards for all 

students, which are: 
a. English Language Arts – Common Core State Standards for English Language Arts
b. Mathematics – Common Core State Standards for Mathematics
c. English Language Development
d. Career Technical Education
e. Health Education Content Standards
f. History-Social Science
g. Model School Library Standards
h. Physical Education Model Content Standards
i. Next Generation Science Standards
j. Visual and Performing Arts
k. World Language; and

B. How the programs and services will enable English learners to access the CCSS and the ELD 
standards for purposes of gaining academic content knowledge and English language proficiency.

Priority 3: Parental Involvement addresses:
A. The efforts the school district makes to seek parent input in making decisions for the school district and 

each individual school site;
B. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for unduplicated pupils; and 
C. How the school district will promote parental participation in programs for individuals with exceptional 

needs.
Priority 4: Pupil Achievement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. Statewide assessments;
B. The Academic Performance Index;
C. The percentage of pupils who have successfully completed courses that satisfy UC or CSU entrance 

requirements, or programs of study that align with state board approved career technical educational 
standards and framework;

D. The percentage of English learner pupils who make progress toward English proficiency as measured 
by the CELDT;

E. The English learner reclassification rate;
F. The percentage of pupils who have passed an advanced placement examination with a score of 3 or 

higher; and
G. The percentage of pupils who participate in, and demonstrate college preparedness pursuant to, the 

Early Assessment Program, or any subsequent assessment of college preparedness.
Priority 5: Pupil Engagement as measured by all of the following, as applicable:

A. School attendance rates;
B. Chronic absenteeism rates;

204 of 638



C. Middle school dropout rates;
D. High school dropout rates; and
E. High school graduation rates;

Priority 6: School Climate as measured by all of the following, as applicable:
A. Pupil suspension rates;
B. Pupil expulsion rates; and
C. Other local measures, including surveys of pupils, parents, and teachers on the sense of safety and 

school connectedness.
Priority 7: Course Access addresses the extent to which pupils have access to and are enrolled in:

A. S broad course of study including courses described under Sections 51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as 
applicable;

B. Programs and services developed and provided to unduplicated pupils; and
C. Programs and services developed and provided to individuals with exceptional needs.

Priority 8: Pupil Outcomes addresses pupil outcomes, if available, for courses described under Sections 
51210 and 51220(a)-(i), as applicable. 
Priority 9: Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate instruction of expelled pupils
Priority 10. Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (COE Only) addresses how the county 
superintendent of schools will coordinate services for foster children, including:

A. Working with the county child welfare agency to minimize changes in school placement 
B. Providing education-related information to the county child welfare agency to assist in the delivery of 

services to foster children, including educational status and progress information that is required to be 
included in court reports;

C. Responding to requests from the juvenile court for information and working with the juvenile court to 
ensure the delivery and coordination of necessary educational services; and

D. Establishing a mechanism for the efficient expeditious transfer of health and education records and the 
health and education passport.

Local Priorities address:
A. Local priority goals; and
B. Methods for measuring progress toward local goals.

205 of 638



APPENDIX A: PRIORITIES 5 AND 6 RATE CALCULATION INSTRUCTIONS

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 
52060 and 52066, as applicable to type of LEA, the following shall apply:

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the academic year 
(July 1 – June 30) who are chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is 
absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year when the total number of days a 
pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually 
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular 
day schools of the district, exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, 
Section 1039.1.

 
(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows: 

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is 
defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer 
in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult 
education high school diploma or passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end 
of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of first-time grade 9 pupils in year 1 
(starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die during 
school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was 
suspended during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

206 of 638



(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled 
during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or short-term enrollment during the 
academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 

2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03, 42238.07, 47605, 47605.6, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 52060, 

52061, 52062, 52063, 52064, 52066, 52067, 52068, 52069, 52070, 52070.5, and 64001,; 20 U.S.C. 

Sections 6312 and 6314.

207 of 638



APPENDIX B: GUIDING QUESTIONS
Guiding Questions: Annual Review and Analysis

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those 
services result in the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 
Education Code Section 52052, including, but not limited to, English learners, low-income pupils, and 
foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services result in the desired outcomes? 

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific school sites and 
were these actions/services effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress 
toward goals in the annual update?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How 
effective were the actions and services in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, 
actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a result of the review of progress 
and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services? 

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? 
What were the reasons for any differences?

Guiding Questions: Stakeholder Engagement

1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils 
and unduplicated pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01; community members; local 
bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies; county office of education foster youth 
services programs, court-appointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders; community 
organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in 
developing, reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP? 

2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement 
in the development of the LCAP?

3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders 
related to the state priorities and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was 
the information made available?

4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other 
feedback received by the LEA through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?

5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant 
to Education Code sections 52062, 52068, or 47606.5, as applicable, including engagement with 
representatives of parents and guardians of pupils identified in Education Code Section 42238.01?

6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported?  How has the involvement of these 

stakeholders supported improved outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils, related to the 
state priorities?

208 of 638



Guiding Questions: Goals, Actions, and Services

1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”: Basic 
Services (Priority 1), the Implementation of State Standards (Priority 2), and Course Access (Priority 
7)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”: Pupil Achievement 
(Priority 4), Pupil Outcomes (Priority 8), Coordination of Instruction of Expelled Pupils (Priority 9 – COE 
Only), and Coordination of Services for Foster Youth (Priority 10 – COE Only)? 

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement”: 
Parental Involvement (Priority 3), Pupil Engagement (Priority 5), and School Climate (Priority 6)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locally-identified priorities? 
5) How have the unique needs of individual school sites been evaluated to inform the development of 

meaningful district and/or individual school site goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, 
parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans; in-depth school level data analysis, etc.)? 

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and 
bgroups as defined in section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and 
over the term of the LCAP?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop 
goals to address each state or local priority?

9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual school sites?
10) What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code Section 52052?
11) What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to 

Education Code Section 52052, to specific school sites, to English learners, to low-income pupils, 
and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

12) How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes? 
13) What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified?  Where can 

these expenditures be found in the LEA’s budget?

Prepared by the California Department of Education, October 2016

209 of 638



210 of 638



211 of 638



212 of 638



213 of 638



214 of 638



215 of 638



216 of 638



217 of 638



218 of 638



219 of 638



220 of 638



221 of 638



222 of 638



223 of 638



224 of 638



225 of 638



226 of 638



227 of 638



228 of 638



229 of 638



230 of 638



231 of 638



232 of 638



233 of 638



234 of 638



235 of 638



236 of 638



237 of 638



238 of 638



239 of 638



240 of 638



241 of 638



242 of 638



243 of 638



244 of 638



245 of 638



246 of 638



247 of 638



248 of 638



249 of 638



250 of 638



251 of 638



252 of 638



253 of 638



254 of 638



255 of 638



256 of 638



257 of 638



258 of 638



259 of 638



260 of 638



261 of 638



262 of 638



263 of 638



264 of 638



265 of 638



266 of 638



267 of 638



268 of 638



269 of 638



270 of 638



271 of 638



272 of 638



273 of 638



274 of 638



275 of 638



276 of 638



277 of 638



278 of 638



279 of 638



280 of 638



281 of 638



282 of 638



283 of 638



284 of 638



285 of 638



286 of 638



287 of 638



288 of 638



289 of 638



290 of 638



291 of 638



292 of 638



293 of 638



294 of 638



295 of 638



296 of 638



297 of 638



298 of 638



299 of 638



300 of 638



301 of 638



302 of 638



303 of 638



304 of 638



305 of 638



306 of 638



307 of 638



308 of 638



309 of 638



310 of 638



311 of 638



312 of 638



313 of 638



314 of 638



315 of 638



316 of 638



317 of 638



318 of 638



319 of 638



320 of 638



321 of 638



322 of 638



323 of 638



324 of 638



325 of 638



326 of 638



327 of 638



328 of 638



329 of 638



330 of 638



331 of 638



332 of 638



333 of 638



334 of 638



335 of 638



336 of 638



337 of 638



338 of 638



339 of 638



340 of 638



341 of 638



342 of 638



343 of 638



344 of 638



345 of 638



346 of 638



347 of 638



348 of 638



349 of 638



350 of 638



351 of 638



352 of 638



353 of 638



354 of 638



355 of 638



356 of 638



357 of 638



358 of 638



359 of 638



360 of 638



361 of 638



362 of 638



363 of 638



364 of 638



365 of 638



366 of 638



367 of 638



368 of 638



369 of 638



370 of 638



371 of 638



372 of 638



373 of 638



374 of 638



375 of 638



376 of 638



377 of 638



378 of 638



379 of 638



380 of 638



381 of 638



382 of 638



383 of 638



384 of 638



385 of 638



386 of 638



387 of 638



388 of 638



389 of 638



390 of 638



391 of 638



392 of 638



393 of 638



394 of 638



395 of 638



396 of 638



397 of 638



398 of 638



399 of 638



400 of 638



401 of 638



402 of 638



403 of 638



404 of 638



405 of 638



406 of 638



407 of 638



408 of 638



409 of 638



410 of 638



411 of 638



412 of 638



413 of 638



414 of 638



415 of 638



416 of 638



417 of 638



418 of 638



419 of 638



420 of 638



421 of 638



422 of 638



423 of 638



424 of 638



425 of 638



426 of 638



427 of 638



428 of 638



429 of 638



430 of 638



431 of 638



432 of 638



433 of 638



434 of 638



435 of 638



436 of 638



437 of 638



438 of 638



439 of 638



440 of 638



441 of 638



442 of 638



443 of 638



444 of 638



445 of 638



446 of 638



447 of 638



448 of 638



449 of 638



450 of 638



451 of 638



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Board President, Abel Gomez called the meeting to order at 1:00 

p.m.   

Members Present:  Nadine High, Amy Charter, John Friel, George 

Green and Abel Gomez   

Absent:    None 

Others Present:     Carol Geyer, Nicole Newman, Daena Meras, 

Duffy Bailey, Trent Sommers, Cathy Marsh, Mike Doherty, 

Tabitha Coutee, and Melanie Brackett 

 

      A.  Pledge of Allegiance 

Ms. Charter led the Pledge of Allegiance  

 2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A motion was made by Ms. High and seconded by Ms. Charter to 

approve the agenda.  Voting aye:  Ms. High, Ms. Charter, Mr. 

Green, Mr. Friel, and Mr. Gomez.  Voting no:  None. Absent:  None 

 

 3.  HEARING OF THE PUBLIC 

No one spoke at this time.  

 4.  Facility Planning Meeting 

Trent Sommers submitted a preliminary layout of the Pierce High 

School Multi-Purpose Facility to the Board.  There was discussion 

regarding the colors and durability of the floor.  Mr. Sommers 

submitted a preliminary drawing of the new classroom wing at 

Arbuckle Elementary.  There was discussion regarding the layout 

and design of the building.  Trent will make some changes to the 

layout that the Board suggested and bring new preliminary 

drawings to the next facility meeting.  There was also discussion 

regarding the locker room project at Pierce High School.   

 

 5.  Football Field Donor Wall 

The Board discussed the creation of the Football Field Donor Wall.  

There was further discussion regarding the projects that were 

completed with the funds from the “Buy a Brick” campaign.  The 

discussion continued regarding replacing the plaques that have been 

removed from the front of the gym.  After further discussion, the 

Board gave direction to discontinue the practice of displaying the 

individual names of the generous donations the District receives, 

and agreed to a more general notice thanking everyone who donates 

and volunteers with one sign.   

 

 6.  Pierce High School Senior Attendance Report 

Mrs. Geyer outlined District Policy 5127:  Graduations Ceremonies 

and Activities and the Pierce High School Policy on attendance for 

seniors.  She explained that the Board policy states that the Board 

shall uphold the decision of the school site appeal process for senior 

attendance appeals.  There was discussion regarding the decline in 

 

Governing Board: 

Abel Gomez, President 
John Friel, Vice President Nadine High, Board Clerk 

George Green, Member Amy Charter, Member 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 
 540-A 6th Street      Arbuckle, CA 95912 

(530) 476-2892 * FAX (530) 476-2289 

Wednesday, May 24, 2017 

1:00 p.m. 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 

Technology Building 

940A Wildwood Rd, Arbuckle CA  95912 

Special Board Meeting Minutes 

452 of 638



Minutes –May 24, 2017 - Special Board Meeting 

Pierce Joint Unified School District 
 

 2 

absences by seniors since this site policy was introduced to the 

Board at the end of the 2015/16 school year. 

 7.  Consider and approve Agreement between 

Pierce Joint Unified School District and A+ 

Painting for the Pierce High School 

Exterior Painting Project 

A motion was made by Mr. Friel and seconded by Mr. Green to 

approve the Agreement between Pierce Joint Unified School 

District and A+ Painting for the Pierce High School Exterior 

Painting Project.  Voting aye:  Ms. High, Ms. Charter, Mr. Green, 

Mr. Friel, and Mr. Gomez.  Voting no:  None. Absent:  None 

 

 8.  Consider and approve Pierce Joint Unified 

School District Board Declaration – Surplus 

Property:  Unused Portable (Rosewood Ent. 

92399) at Pierce High School 

A motion was made by Mr. Friel and seconded by Ms. Charter to 

approve the Pierce Joint Unified School District Board Declaration 

– Surplus Property:  Unused Portable (Rosewood Ent. 92399) at 

Pierce High School.  Voting aye:  Ms. High, Ms. Charter, Mr. 

Green, Mr. Friel, and Mr. Gomez.  Voting no:  None. Absent:  None 

 

 9.  CLOSED SESSION: 

     A.  Stipulated Expulsion for Student 16/17 – B 

 

     B.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / 

DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to 

Government Code sec. 54957, the Board 

will meet in CLOSED SESSION to 

discuss public employee 

discipline/dismissal/release 

The Board went into CLOSED SESSION at 2:46 p.m.  

 10.  OPEN SESSION:    

The Board reconvened at 3:04.    

        A.  Stipulated Expulsion for Student 16/17-B 

A motion was made by Mr. Green and seconded by Mr. Friel to 

approve the Stipulated Expulsion for Student 16/17 – B.  Voting 

aye:  Ms. High, Ms. Charter, Mr. Green, Mr. Friel, and Mr. Gomez.  

Voting no:  None. Absent:  None 

 

 B.  PUBLIC EMPLOYEE DISCIPLINE / 

DISMISSAL / RELEASE:  Pursuant to 

Government Code sec. 54957, the Board will 

meet in CLOSED SESSION to discuss public 

employee discipline/dismissal/release 

No ACTION was taken.   

 11.  ADJOURN 

The Board adjourned at 3:05 p.m.  

 _________________________________ 

 Carol Geyer, Secretary to the Board 

of Trustees 
 

453 of 638



45
4 

of
 6

38



45
5 

of
 6

38



45
6 

of
 6

38



45
7 

of
 6

38



45
8 

of
 6

38



45
9 

of
 6

38



46
0 

of
 6

38



46
1 

of
 6

38



46
2 

of
 6

38



46
3 

of
 6

38



46
4 

of
 6

38



46
5 

of
 6

38



46
6 

of
 6

38



46
7 

of
 6

38



46
8 

of
 6

38



46
9 

of
 6

38



47
0 

of
 6

38



47
1 

of
 6

38



47
2 

of
 6

38



47
3 

of
 6

38



47
4 

of
 6

38



47
5 

of
 6

38



47
6 

of
 6

38



47
7 

of
 6

38



47
8 

of
 6

38



47
9 

of
 6

38



48
0 

of
 6

38



48
1 

of
 6

38



48
2 

of
 6

38



48
3 

of
 6

38



48
4 

of
 6

38



48
5 

of
 6

38



48
6 

of
 6

38



48
7 

of
 6

38



48
8 

of
 6

38



48
9 

of
 6

38



490 of 638



491 of 638



492 of 638



493 of 638



494 of 638



495 of 638



496 of 638



497 of 638



498 of 638



499 of 638



500 of 638



501 of 638



502 of 638



503 of 638



504 of 638



505 of 638



506 of 638



507 of 638



508 of 638



509 of 638



510 of 638



511 of 638



512 of 638



513 of 638



514 of 638



515 of 638



516 of 638



517 of 638



518 of 638



519 of 638



520 of 638



521 of 638



522 of 638



523 of 638



524 of 638



525 of 638



526 of 638



527 of 638



528 of 638



529 of 638



530 of 638



531 of 638



532 of 638



533 of 638



534 of 638



535 of 638



536 of 638



537 of 638



538 of 638



539 of 638



540 of 638



541 of 638



542 of 638



543 of 638



544 of 638



545 of 638



546 of 638



547 of 638



548 of 638



549 of 638



550 of 638



551 of 638



552 of 638



553 of 638



554 of 638



555 of 638



556 of 638



557 of 638



558 of 638



559 of 638



560 of 638



561 of 638



562 of 638



563 of 638



564 of 638



565 of 638



566 of 638



567 of 638



568 of 638



569 of 638



570 of 638



571 of 638



572 of 638



573 of 638



574 of 638



575 of 638



576 of 638



577 of 638



578 of 638



579 of 638



580 of 638



581 of 638



582 of 638



583 of 638



584 of 638



585 of 638



586 of 638



587 of 638



588 of 638



589 of 638



590 of 638



591 of 638



592 of 638



593 of 638



594 of 638



595 of 638



596 of 638



597 of 638



598 of 638



599 of 638



600 of 638



601 of 638



602 of 638



603 of 638



604 of 638



605 of 638



606 of 638



607 of 638



608 of 638



609 of 638



610 of 638



611 of 638



612 of 638



613 of 638



614 of 638



615 of 638



616 of 638



617 of 638



618 of 638



619 of 638



620 of 638



621 of 638



622 of 638



623 of 638



624 of 638



625 of 638



626 of 638



627 of 638



628 of 638



629 of 638



630 of 638



631 of 638



632 of 638



633 of 638



634 of 638



635 of 638



636 of 638



637 of 638



638 of 638


	Agenda Page 1
	Agenda Page 2
	Agenda Page 3
	Agenda Page 4
	Agenda Page 5
	Budget
	LCAP
	Sunshine
	AES/GI Benchmark
	JJH Benchmark
	PHS Benchmark
	DAC
	Discipline
	Staff Development
	Grimes Water
	Nurse Annual Report
	Shooting Club
	ASES Report
	TCIP
	16/17-33
	16/17-34
	16/17-35
	16/17-36
	AES Single Plan
	GI Single Plan
	JJH Single Plan
	PHS/ALT Single Plan
	Quallified Educators
	30-day Substitute
	Title III ESSA
	Carl Perkins
	Ag Incentive
	Peer Assistance
	Kindergarten
	May 18 minutes
	May 24 Minutes
	Warrants
	CSBA Manual Maint
	CSBA Gamut
	ROP
	Overnight Field Trip
	Policies

	Button1: 
	Button3: 
	Button4: 
	Button5: 
	Button6: 
	Button7: 
	Button9: 
	Button10: 
	Button11: 
	Button12: 
	Button13: 
	Button14: 
	Button15: 
	Button16: 
	Button17: 
	Button18: 
	Button19: 
	Button20: 
	Button22: 
	Button23: 
	Button24: 
	Button25: 
	Button26: 
	Button27: 
	Button28: 
	Button29: 
	Button30: 
	Button31: 
	Button32: 
	Button33: 
	Button34: 
	Button35: 
	Button36: 


